BROKEN >>BOW

NEBRASKA

Rooted. But Not Standing Still.

CITY OF BROKEN BOW
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
July 25, 2023 @ 6:00 PM
Municipal Auditorium
314 South 10t Avenue, Broken Bow NE

Meeting Procedure

The Public may address specific agenda items at the pleasure of the mayor. Please come to the podium, state your
name and address, and limit your remarks to five minutes or less. Out of respect to City employees, we request that
any complaints or criticisms of employees not be aired in a public meeting. Concerns about employees should be
brought to the attention of the City Administrator or Mayor. An individual in violation will be declared out of order.
Individuals who have appropriate items for City Council consideration should complete the Request for Future
Agenda Items.

A. Call to Order

B. Open Meetings Act: A current copy of the Open Meetings Act is available and is posted for
review by all citizens.

C. Roll Call
D. Pledge of Allegiance
E. Consent Agenda: Council will have consideration of approving the consent agenda
items for July 25, 2023, which will include the following:
a. Approval of Minutes of July 11, 2023, Council Meeting
b. Approval of City Bills as Posted
F. Other Communications:
a. Truckers Against Trafficking - Deb McCaslin

G. New Business:

a. Library Policies — Council will have consideration of approving the updated
Broken Bow Public Library Policies.

b. Signer for City Bank Accounts — Council will have consideration of approving
City Treasurer Jennifer Waterhouse to be added as an authorized signer for alll
City bank accounts held at Bruning Bank and Nebraska State Bank.

c. Authorized Person on Safety Deposit Box — Council will have consideration of
approving City Treasurer Jennifer Waterhouse to be an authorized name on the
safety deposit box at First Interstate Bank in Broken Bow, Nebraska.

d. Budget Workshop Dates — Council will have consideration of setting the date
and time for the Budget Workshop. Possible dates: Wednesday, August 23, or
Thursday, August 24", 2023.

**Please click on the letter next to the agenda item to see the information associated with that item.



BROKEN >>BOW

NEBRAS KA

Roorted. Bur Not Standing Still.

CITY OF BROKEN BOW
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
July 25, 2023 @ 6:00 PM
Municipal Auditorium
314 South 10t Avenue, Broken Bow NE

H. Mayor and Council Comments

. Adjournment

The next City Council Meeting will be held on Tuesday, August 8, 2023 @ 6:00 pm.

Upcoming Events:

August 8" — Board of Public Works Meeting @ 12:30 pm in the Broken Bow Municipal
Auditorium
August 81" — City Council Meeting @ 6:00 pm in the Broken Bow Municipal Auditorium

The Council will review the above matters and take such action as they deem appropriate. The Council may enter
into closed session to discuss any matter on this agenda when it is determined by the Council that it is clearly
necessary for protection of the public interest or the prevention of needless injury to the reputation of any individual
and if such individual has not requested a public meeting, or as otherwise allowed by law. Any closed session shall
be limited to the subject matter for which the closed session was classed. If the motion to close passes, immediately
prior to the closed session the mayor shall restate on the record the limitation of the subject matter of the closed
session.

**Please click on the letter next to the agenda item to see the information associated with that item.



Broken Bow City Council
Meeting Minutes
July 11, 2023

The Broken Bow City Council met in regular session on Tuesday, July 11, 2023, in the Broken
Bow Municipal Auditorium. Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof as required by
publication in the Custer County Chief on July 6, 2023. Availability of the agenda and related
materials was communicated in the advanced notice to the Mayor and all members of the
Council, as well as shared with various media outlets. All proceedings hereafter shown were
taken while the meeting was open to the attendance of the public.

Mayor Rod Sonnichsen called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm, with the following
Councilmembers present: David Baltz, Paul Holland, and Russ Smith. Absent: Chris Myers.
Mayor Sonnichsen announced the availability of the open meetings law, followed by reciting of
the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Sonnichsen read the format for submitting requests for future agenda items.

Moved by Baltz, seconded by Holland to approve the consent agenda for July 11, 2023. Said
motion includes approval of the Minutes of June 27, 2023, Council Meeting, City Bills to Date,
and Broken Bow EMS Roster. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Baltz, Holland, and Smith. Nays:
None. Motion carried.

AKRS EQUIPMENT, MAINT/REPAIR EQUIP, $6,775.05; AFLAC, PRE TAX, $297.08; AFLAC
POST TAX, $38.52; BLUE VALLEY PUBLIC SAFETY, REPAIRS TO SIREN, $165.00;
BROKEN BOW CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, AMBULANCE INCENTIVE, $2,305.00;
BROKEN BOW MUNICIPAL UTILITIES, $9,046.95; CAPITAL ONE SUPPLIES; COMPUTER
SOFTWARE, FLOORMATS, $296.40; CITY FLEX BENEFIT PLAN, SELECT FLEX-
UNREIMBURSED M/D/V, $145.00; CITY OF BROKEN BOW, HEALTH INSURANCE,
$3,088.40; CITY OF BROKEN BOW PENSION FUND, RETIREMENT LOAN PAYMENT,
$1,683.61; 414H RETIREMENT, $7,807.26; 457 RETIREMENT, $469.06; COLONIAL
INSURANCE, PRE TAX, $428.67; COLONIAL LIFE POST TAX, $118.72; CORNHUSKER
STATE INDUSTRIES, EQUIPMENT PURCHASES, $5,555.00; CUSTER COUNTY CHIEF,
$124.02; CUSTER PUBLIC POWER, CD CELL POWER, $51.05; DANKO EMERGENCY
EQUIPMENT CO., AIR EJECT TRUCK 32, $336.56; DAVID SCHMIDT, $79.21; EFTPS
ONLINE PAYMENT, MEDICARE, $2,697.70; FEDERAL, $6,583.39; FICA, $11,535.04;
FAMILY HERITAGE, $25.50; GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS, PHONE/INTERNET,
$310.90; ISLAND SUPPLY COMPANY, OXYGEN, $64.00; NEBRASKA CHILD SUPPORT
PAYMENT CENTER, CHILD SUPPORT, NE, $433.39; O'REILLY AUTO PARTS, MOLDING
TAPE $8.01; RT ACE, $588.21; REGISTER OF DEEDS, FILING FEE VARIANCE X3
PROPERTIES, $30.00; FILING FEE VARIANCE X3 PROPERTIES, $30.00; SANDHILLS
CUSTOM CREATIONS, $84.99; SANDRY FIRE SUPPLY LLC, BUNKER GEAR X2,
$7,882.50; SARA J. HULINSKY, CLEANING SERVICE, $837.00; SCHAPER AND WHITE
LAW FIRM, LEGAL FEES, $3,000.00; SOUTH CENTRAL EMS, POWER LOAD SYSTEM,
$2,175.00; STATE INCOME TAX WH NE ONLINE PAYMENT, STATE, $3,422.21;, STEVE
SCOTT, SUPPLIES AND KEYS FOR WEST DOOR, $114.43; TX CHILD SUPPORT SDU,
CHILD SUPPORT, TX, $69.23; TAYLOR HEATING & COOLING LLC, WATER LEAK



REPAIR, $72.00; THE GARDEN CENTER $1,126.77; TROTTER SERVICE, GAS AN OIL,
$336.43; VERIZON WIRELESS, WIFI FOR PATROL UNITS, $305.78; BI-WEEKLY PAYROLL
$69,186.12; TOTAL: $149,729.16.

Moved by Baltz, seconded by Holland, to excuse Councilmember Myers from the meeting. Roll
Call vote: Voting aye: Baltz, Holland, and Smith. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Program Director of Super Kids Club Megan Crawford invited the Mayor and Council to North
Park Elementary School on Wednesday, July 26", 2023, at 2:00 pm. To see the unveiling of the
3D model of what the 5™ Graders imagine the City of Broken Bow to be like in the year 2043.

Terry Glaze addressed the Council on the possibility of placing two 24-inch WWII bronze plaques
mounted on steel posts at the Veteran’s Memorial Park. Glaze stated that all the labor and
concrete would be provided. The Council recommended that this be placed in front of the Park
Board at their next meeting on Monday, August 7, 2023.

Moved by Holland, seconded by Baltz, to open a public hearing regarding Resolution 2023-5,
TIF Application from CEDC, Redevelopment Amendment for the Eagle Crest Second
Subdivision at 6:12 pm. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Holland, Baltz, and Smith. Nays: None. Motion
Carried. CEDC Executive Director Keith Ellis explained the reasoning behind the TIF allocation
is to make housing in Broken Bow truly affordable. Discussion was held. Moved by Smith,
seconded by Holland, to close the public hearing regarding Resolution 2023-5, TIF Application
from CEDC, Redevelopment Amendment for the Eagle Crest Second Subdivision at 6:16 pm.
Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Smith, Holland, and Baltz. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Moved by Smith, seconded by Baltz, to approve Resolution 2023-5, TIF Application from
CEDC, Redevelopment Amendment for the Eagle Crest Second Subdivision. Roll Call vote:
Voting aye: Smith, Baltz, and Holland. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Moved by Holland, seconded by Smith to approve Resolution 2023-6, TIF Application from
CEDC, Redevelopment Agreement for the Eagle Crest Second Subdivision. Roll Call vote:
Voting aye: Holland, Smith, and Baltz. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Moved by Baltz, seconded by Smith, to open a public hearing regarding Resolution 2023-7,
MW Real Estate Investment Group, LLC TIF Application, Redevelopment Amendment at 6:18
pm. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Baltz, Smith, and Holland. Nays: None. Motion carried. Kyle
Wolfe represented MW Real Estate Investment Group, LLC. Wolfe explained that the two
houses and garage at 1245 North 15" Street will be leveled for the project to take place. They
will be constructing an eight-apartment complex with each unit having 3 bedrooms and two
bathrooms. Moved by Holland, seconded by Smith to close the public hearing regarding
Resolution 2023-7, MW Real Estate Investment Group, LLC TIF Application, Redevelopment
Amendment at 6:21 pm. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Holland, Smith, and Baltz. Nays: None.
Motion carried.

Moved by Smith, seconded by Holland to approve Resolution 2023-7, MW Real Estate
Investment Group, LLC TIF Application, Redevelopment Amendment for the Prairieland



Addition Redevelopment Project. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Smith, Holland, and Baltz. Nays:
None. Motion carried.

Moved by Holland, seconded by Smith to approve Resolution 2023-8, MW Real Estate
Investment Group, LLC TIF Application, Redevelopment Agreement for the Prairieland
Addition Redevelopment Project. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Holland, Smith, and Baltz. Nays:
None. Motion carried.

Moved by Baltz, seconded by Smith to approve the appointment of Jeff Withrow to the Board
of Public Works for a term ending June 2026. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Baltz, Smith, and
Holland. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Moved by Smith, seconded by Holland to approve the appointment of Jennifer Waterhouse as
the City Treasurer. Roll call vote: Voting aye: Smith, Holland, and Baltz. Nays: None. Motion
carried.

Broken Bow Housing Authority Director Anna Martin presented the Annual Housing Authority
Report and requested the Council to waive the PILOT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) Funds in the
amount of $25,145.95. These funds will be put into a CD until needed for street projects.

Moved by Smith, seconded by Baltz to approve the request of waiver of PILOT Funds from the
Broken Bow Housing Authority in the amount of $25,145.95. Roll Call vote: Voting aye: Smith
and Baltz, Nays: None. Abstain: Holland.

In the Mayor and Council Comments, Mayor Sonnichsen thanked everyone for attending the
Council meeting. Councilmember Baltz welcomed Jennifer Waterhouse to the City.

Moved by Holland, seconded by Baltz, to adjourn the City Council Meeting at 6:32 pm. Roll Call
vote: Voting aye: Holland, Baltz, and Smith. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Rodney W. Sonnichsen, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kandi K. Peters, City Clerk

Return to Agenda



7/21/2023 3:57:53 PM

Vend# Vendor Name

Pay# Post Date

34254

34255

34207

34208

34211

34204

34219

34220

34221

34209

34222

34223

34205

34210

34256

34266

Due Date

Account#

Aflac
7/19/2023  7/19/2023

01-1501.00

Work Order

7/19/2023 17/19/2023
01-1501.00

Ag Land ATV

7/25/2023  7/25/2023
09-3310.00

Aquatic Access Inc.

7/25/2023  7/25/2023
10-3310.00

Beaver Bearing Co Albion

7/25/2023  7/25/2023
09-3310.00

Black Hills Energy

7/25/2023  7/25/2023
02-3220.00

Bound Tree Medical

7/25/2023  7/25/2023

05-3338.00

Accounts Payable Detail Listing

City of Broken Bow

Amount Invoice Date PO#

Description

297.08
PRE TAX AFLAC
38.52
AFLAC POST TAX

96.75
Battery 4 wheeler

74.00
Lift Chair Seal Kit

112.04

Equipment Repair

197.86
Utilities-Gas

1,627.68
EMS Supplies

Broken Bow Ambulance Service

7/25/2023

05-3202.00

7/25/2023

Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
7/125/2023  7/25/2023

06-3205.00

Carquest of Broken Bow
7/25/2023  7/25/2023
09-3310.00

Central Community College
7/25/2023
05-3202.00

Central Nebraska Bobcat
7125/2023 7/25/2023

-J00U

Century Link
712512023  7/25/2023

Choice Paint & Supply
7/25/2023  7/25/2023

(

City Flex Benefit Plan
7/19/2023  7/19/2023

City of Broken Bow - Health In
7/19/2023  7/19/2023

67.95

PAC advance medical life support

1,384.25
fire school
trotter repairs to tower/truck
jreat plains

A Black Hills

A Black Hills

jreat plains

29.52

Sydr Fitting

1,240.00

paramedic class summer session

1,303.47

Sireat - Basi
ireel - odsl

8,027.39

145.00

JE| F

surance
3,088.40

ALTH INSURANCE

Page 1 of 5

Date Status

Debit Credit
Posted

297.08 0.00
Posted

38.52 0.00
Posted

06.75 0.00
Posted

74.00 0.00
Posted

112.04 0.00
Posted

)7 86 0.00
Posted

1.627.68 0.00
Posted

37 95 0.00

Posted

(
L= UL IRVAY}

Posted

Posted

e



712112023 3:57:53 PM Accounts Payable Detail Listing

. Page 2 of 5
City of Broken Bow ageso
Vend# Vendor Name
Pay# PostDate Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date Status
Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit
City of Broken Bow Pension Fund (continued)
34257 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 1,636.01 Posted
01-1513.00 RETIREMENT LOAN PAYMENT 1.636.01 0.00
34258 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 7,885.22 Posted
01-1502.00 414H RETIREMENT 7.885.22 0.00
34259 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 759.58 Posted
01-1502.00 457 RETIREMENT 759.58 0.00
Colonial Insurance
34252 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 428.67 Posted
01-1501.00 COLONIAL LIFE PRE TAX 428.67 0.00
34253 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 118.72 Posted
01-1501.00 COLONIAL LIFE POST TAX 118.72 0.00
Custer County Chief
34206 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 404.89 Posted
01-3209.00 publication 404.89 0.00
Custer Transfer Station
34216 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 35.20 Posted
09-3219.00 Trash Removal 35.20 0.00
Danko Emergency Equipment Co
34225 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 503.75 Posted
06-3310.00 mobile service labor 503.75 0.00
Deterdings
34212 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 85.98 Posted
10-3310.00 Chlorine Lids 85.98 0.00
EFTPS Online Payment
34262 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 2,710.12 Posted
01-1500.00 MEDICARE 2, 710.12 0.00
34263 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 6,661.57 Posted
01-1500.00 FEDERAL MARRIED o4 0.00
01-1500.00 FEDERAL SINGLE >.61 0.00
01-1500.00 Federal Head of Household 7.90 0.00
01-1500.00 2020 Federal Single 89 0.00
01-1500.00 2020 Federal Married .93 0.00
57 )00
34264 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 11,587.66 Posted
01-1500.00 SOCIAL SECURITY 11.587.66
EZ IT Solutions
34214 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 2,590.00 Posted
01-3438.00 IT S 0.00
0.00
30
Eakes Office Products
34213 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 Posted
)00
| 0.00
Family Heritage
34260 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 25.50 Posted
01-1501 00 FAMILY HERITAGE 25.50 0.00
Federal Signal Corporation - SSG
34226

7/25/2023  7/25/2023 11,467.00
NE-24 15 10 Sire

=3 sSiren =40 U

Posted



712112023 3:57:53 PM Accounts Payable Detail Listing

. P 3of5
City of Broken Bow g8 e
Vend# Vendor Name
Pay# PostDate Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date Status
Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit
Frontier Family Pharmacy (continued)
34227 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 260.24 Posted
05-3333.00 EMS Supplies 260.24 0.00
General Traffic Controls
34224 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 155.00 Posted
08-3347.00 Red street lights 155.00 0.00
Grocery Kart
34215 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 536.81 Posted
10-3311.00 Cleaning Supplies 536.81 0.00
Ingram Library Services
34217 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 1,647.74 Posted
07-3340.00 materials 1,647.74 0.00
Island Supply Welding Co.
34228 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 49.70 Posted
05-3338.00 oxygen 49.70 0.00
Jacob Holcomb
34250 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 230.56 Posted
01-3205.00 Mileage/Travel League Conf 230.56 0.00
Kirkpatrick Cleaning Solutions
34218 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 1,259.51 Posted
02-3223.01 Cleaning After Events. Paper towels, Soap 1,235.67 0.00
07-3223.00 Supplies Paper Towels 23.84 0.00
1,259.51 0.00
Mid American Research Chemical
34229 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 738.08 Posted
09-3311.00 cleaning supplies 738.08 0.00
Midwest Alarm Services
34248 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 629.00 Posted
04-3311.00 Fire extinguisher inspectio 28.0( 0.00
00 N 480 0.00
1o 30 00
3 00
National Geographic
34230 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 45.00 Posted
07-3340.00 magazine renewal 2 years 45.00 ).00
1 Nebraska Child Support Payment Center
34261 7/19/2023  7/19/2023 433.39 Posted
01-1503.00 CHILD SUPPORT-NE 433.39 ).00
Nebraska Library Commission
34231 7/25/202 7/25/2023 146.0 Posted
07-3340.00 CAT exprass ranewal 146.00 0.0¢
Nebraska Pasture Door
34233 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 54.98 Posted
01-3212.0C ~ffice clothing 54.98 0.00
Nebraska Safety and Fire Equipment, Inc
34234 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 444.00 Posted
07-3311.00 fire alarms and extinguisher 444 00 ).00
Nebraska State Bank
34203 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 36,772.65 Posted
O'Reilly Auto Parts
34236 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 57.30 Posted
04-3310.00 ridium olua 2018 axn 57 30
OCLC Inc.
34235 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 615.37 Posted



7/21/2023 3:57:53 PM

Vend# Vendor Name
Pay# PostDate Due Date
Account# Work Order

Paulsen Inc. (continued)
34238 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

09-3339.00

Pavement Repair & Supplies
34239 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

08-3345.00

Pentair Aquatic Eco Systems
34240 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

09-3430.00

Platte Valley Communications
34237 7/25/2023  7/25/2023
01-3410.00

Presto X Company
34241 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

02-3311.00

07-3311.00

Ranchland Ford
34242 7/25/2023  7/25/2023
03-3310.00

05-3310.00

Ryan Bowland
34243  7/25/2023  7/25/2023

08-3410.01

S&L Sanitary Service
34244 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

09-3219.00

STEVE MOGENSEN
34245 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

09-3410.01

Site One Landscape Supply
34246  7/25/2023  7/25/2023

08-3311.00

706.75

concrete

3,375.00

Accounts Payable Detail Listing
City of Broken Bow

Amount Invoice
Description

perma patch

1,289.27

aerator pump

140.30

antenna/milage

208.23

Pest Service

354.58

handi bus oil ¢

oil change

85.60

boots

54.30

trasn remaov

56.00

DOO(S

145.13

State Income Tax WH NE Online Payment

34265 7/19/2023  7/19/2023
01-1500.00

1500.00

TX Child Support SDU
34267 7/1‘9/20723 7/19/2023

)

Trotter Service
34247 7/25/2023  7/25/2023
04-3310

A
JU
00

(
00

3222310 00

Verizon Wireless
34251 7/25/2023  7/25/2023

3,466.39

STATE M
69.23

o

monthly servic

reek strav

(9]

Al

vV DIdNKel

hange/battery

Page 4 of 5
Date Status
Debit Credit
Posted
706.75 0.00
Posted
3,375.00 0.0(
Posted
1,289.27 0.0
Posted
140.30 0.00
Posted
142.33 0.00
65.90 0.00
208.23 0.00
Posted
285.14 0.00
69.44 0.00
354 .58 0.00
Posted
85.60 0.00
Posted
54 .31 0.00
Posted
56.0( D0
Posted
1451 00
Posted
2.274.38 000
1.1 “Z ()
3.466.39
Posted
39.2 3 0
Posted
249 05
1,072.00
i 71" ‘\

Posted




Accounts Payable Detail Listing Page 5 0f 5

7/21/2023 3:57:53 PM
City of Broken Bow

Vend# Vendor Name

Pay# PostDate Due Date Amount Invoice Date PO# Date Status
Account# Work Order Description Debit Credit
Wenquist Inc. (continued)
34232 7/25/2023  7/25/2023 207.97 Posted
09-3310.00 maint repair equipment 207 .97

123,675.73 64 Non-voided payables listed.

Report Setup . ‘p
AP - Accounts Payable Listing : Vendor Name %| ~\WN QQlC\Li Ay roll
Filter Options
Starting: 7/12/2023 2 9 il 4,03
Ending: 7/25/2023

Banks: All
Payable Status: Posted, Printed, ACH, Recorded, Voided

All Vendors Selected




Check Approval List - GL Account

7/21/2023 3:58:31 PM
Vendor Name

General
Aflac
Aflac
Century Link
Century Link
City Flex Benefit Plan
City of Broken Bow - Health Insurance
City of Broken Bow Pension Fund
City of Broken Bow Pension Fund
City of Broken Bow Pension Fund
Colonial Insurance
Colonial Insurance
Custer County Chief
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EFTPS Online Payment
EZ IT Solutions
Eakes Office Products
Eakes Office Products
Eakes Office Products
Family Heritage
Jacob Holcomb
Nebraska Child Support Payment Center
Nebraska Pasture Door
Platte Valley Communications
State Income Tax WH NE Online Paymel
State Income Tax WH NE Online Paymel
TX Child Support SDU
Verizon Wireless

Municipal Building
Black Hills Energy
Kirkpatrick Cleaning Solutions
Midwest Alarm Services
Presto X Company

Handi Bus
Century Link
Ranchland Ford
Verizon Wireless

Police
Century Link
Midwest Alarm Services
O'Reilly Auto Parts
Trotter Service
Trotter Service

Rescue Unit
Bound Tree Medical
Broken Bow Ambulance Service
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Central Community College
EZ IT Solutions
Frontier Family Pharmacy
Island Supply Welding Co.
Ranchland Ford
Verizon Wireless

Fire

Invoice

City of Broken Bow
Invoice Description

PRE TAX AFLAC
AFLAC POST TAX

SELECT FLEX-UNREIMBURSED M/D/V
HEALTH INS

414H RETIREMENT

457 RETIREMENT

RETIREMENT LOAN PAYMENT
COLONIAL LIFE PRE TAX

COLONIAL LIFE POST TAX

MEDICARE

FEDERAL

FEDERAL

FEDERAL

FEDERAL

FEDERAL

FICA

IT Services

Supplies

Supplies

Supplies

FAMILY HERITAGE
Mileage Reimbursement
CHILD SUPPORT-NE
office clothing
equipment purchases repair
STATE

STATE

CHILD SUPPORT-TX
telephone

Supplies/Cleaning

monthly service

maint repair equipment
telephone

iridium plug 2018 exp
maint repair equip
maint repair equip

EMS Supplies
PAC Advance medical life support

IT Services

EMS Supplies

oxygen

maint repair equipment
telephone

Account Description

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Telephone/Internet

Telephone/Internet

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Pension

Pension

Loan Payment

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Printing & Publication

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

IT Expense

Copier Maint/Expense

Copier Maint/Expense

Supplies & Postage

Health/Life/Acc Insuranc

Training & Meeting Expe

Child Support

City Promotions

Equipment Purchases

Payroll Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Child Support

Telephone/Internet
Total General

Utilities

Building Cleaning Suppli

Maintenance & Repair B

Maintenance & Repair B
Total Municipal Building

Telephone/Internet

Maint/Repair Equipment

Telephone/Internet
Total Handi Bus

Telephone/Internet
Maintenance & Repair B
Maint/Repair Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
Total Police

Ambulance Supplies
Education and Training
Utilities
Telephone/Internet
Education and Training
IT Expense
Ambulance Supplies
Ambulance Supplies
Maint/Repair Equipment
Telephone/Internet
Total Rescue Unit

Page 1 of 3
Amount

297.08
38.52
170.98
389.00
145.00
3,088.40
7,885.22
759.58
1,636.01
428.67
118.72
404.89
2,710.12
3,5681.64
2,295.61
167.90
234.89
381.53
11,587.66
431.67
116.69
1,004.95
297.66
25.50
230.56
433.39
54.98
140.30
2,274.38
1,192.01
69.23
120.34

$42,713.08

197.86
1,235.67
52.00
142.33

$1,627.86

66.09
285.14
35.68
$386.91

290.38
28.00
57.30

838.00
25.00

$1,238.68

1,627.68
67.95
137.29
41.41
1,240.00
215.83
260.24
49.70
69.44
240.68

$3,950.22



7/21/2023 3:58:31 PM

Vendor Name

Fire
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Broken Bow Rural Fire Board
Danko Emergency Equipment Co
EZ IT Solutions
Federal Signal Corporation - SSG
Midwest Alarm Services
Verizon Wireless
Verizon Wireless

Library
EZ IT Solutions
Eakes Office Products
Ingram Library Services
Kirkpatrick Cleaning Solutions
National Geographic
Nebraska Library Commission

Check Approval List - GL Account
City of Broken Bow

Invoice

Invoice Description

Nebraska Safety and Fire Equipment, Inc

OCLC Inc.
Presto X Company

Street
Century Link
Choice Paint & Supply
EZ IT Solutions
General Traffic Controls
Midwest Alarm Services
Midwest Alarm Services
Nebraska State Bank
Pavement Repair & Supplies
Ryan Bowland
Site One Landscape Supply
Trotter Service
Trotter Service
Verizon Wireless

Park
Ag Land ATV
Beaver Bearing Co Albion
Carquest of Broken Bow
Century Link
Custer Transfer Station
EZ IT Solutions
Mid American Research Chemical
Paulsen Inc.
Pentair Aquatic Eco Systems
S&L Sanitary Service
STEVE MOGENSEN
Trotter Service
Verizon Wireless
Wenquist Inc.

Swimming Pool
Aquatic Access Inc.
Century Link
Deterdings
Grocery Kart

Sanitation
Central Nebraska Bobcat
EZ IT Solutions

mobile service labor
IT Services
siren

telephone
telephone

IT Services
Supplies

materials
Supplies/Cleaning
materials

materials
main/repair building
materials

monthly service

IT Services
traffic lights

road materials
safety equipment
straw blanket
maint repair equip
maint repair equip
telephone

Maintenance/Repair
Equipment Repair
Maint Repair Equipment

Trash Removal

IT Services

maint repair building
Maint,repair ground
aerator pump

trash removal
safety equipment
maint repair equip
telephone
equipment repair

Chair Lift
Maint Repair Equip
Cleaning Supplies

Maint, Equipment, Repair
IT Services

Account Description

Training & Meeting Expe
Utilities
Telephone/Internet
Maint/Repair Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
IT Expense
Sirens and Batteries
Maintenance & Repair B
Telephone/Internet
Telephone/Internet
Total Fire

IT Expense

Supplies & Postage

Book Purchases

Supplies & Postage

Book Purchases

Book Purchases

Maintenance & Repair B

Book Purchases

Maintenance & Repair B
Total Library

Telephone/Internet

Pavement Marking

IT Expense

Street Signs

Maintenance & Repair B

Maintenance & Repair B

Trucks/Loader

Road Materials

Safety Equipment

Maintenance & Repair B

Gas and Qil

Maint/Repair Equipment

Telephone/Internet
Total Street

Maint/Repair Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
Telephone/Internet
Trash Removal
IT Expense
Maintenance & Repair B
Maintenance/Repair Grc
Melham Lake
Trash Removal
Safety Equipment
Maint/Repair Equipment
Telephone/Internet
Maint/Repair Equipment
Total Park

Maint/Repair Equipment
Telephone/Internet
Maint/Repair Equipment
Maintenance & Repair B
Total Swimming Pool

Sanitation Contract
IT Expense
Total Sanitation

Page 2 of 3
Amount

574.85
137.29
41.41
452.00
503.75
215.84
11,467.00
489.00
128.83
40.01

$14,049.98

431.67
92.44
1,647.74
23.84
45.00
146.00
444.00
615.37
65.90

$3,511.96

93.95
8,027.39
431.66
155.00
30.00
30.00
36,772.65
3,375.00
85.60
145.13
249.05
1,072.00
128.83

$50,596.26

96.75
112.04
29.52
93.94
35.20
431.66
738.08
706.75
1,289.27
54.30
56.00
147.00
128.82
207.97

$4,127.30

74.00
199.13
85.98
536.81

$895.92

145.89
431.67
$577.56



Check Approval List - GL Account

7/21/2023 3:58:31 PM City of Broken Bow Page 3 of 3
Vendor Name Invoice Invoice Description Account Description Amount
$123,675.73

Report Selection: Check Approval List - GL Account _ 03
Date Range Selection: GL Posting Date B} —\xleeii‘\\( Pa‘{ ro fl $ bqlrlq ;
Starting Date:  7/12/2023
Ending Date: 7/25/2023

Return to Agenda



BROKEN >BOW

NE B R A S K A

Rooted. But Not Standing Still.

REQUEST FOR FUTURE
AGENDA ITEM

If you have a specific topic that you would like the City Council to discuss at a future meeting, please list
your name, address, telephone number, and the specific topic. The item will be reviewed and possibly
scheduled for a future meeting, or forwarded to City staff for appropriate action.

Name: bﬁxb VW/(C&,Sii/\
address: 3O F (D eisserT [‘?'OOL-J
BFOK&/\ Beuﬁi Ns 68802
Telephone #: _ IO & — 870 2909
Date of Request: ju(odL LS L2023
Deseription of Topie: 10 iS¢ sy an_d DCAM G
cuent: ATFu cKers Qﬁqims‘f ottt LKJ[ N g
/%Ja) 27 =29, 2023 ~ Jo ask -‘Fc)nd‘
use ot NMunicpal Boild, ac £ -
' J
ou b.c dk/&/aﬁ cind forovme,

Please return to the City Clerk at City Hall, by email (kpeters@cityofbrokenbow.org), or by fax
(308-872-6885).

Return to Agenda



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICIES

The following policies were prepared by the Broken Bow Public Library
Board of Trustees to serve as a directive of the Board as to the
operational policy of the library. These policies will be examined annually
and may be revised at any time by action of the Board of Trustees
as outlined in the by-laws governing the Board.

REVISED AND APPROVED BY THE BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES ON September 12, 2011. © 2022.

Julie Shinn
President of the Board



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY

A. Advocacy/Mission Statement and Objectives

The Broken Bow Public Library strives to provide Broken Bow and the surrounding area
with unique educational and cultural opportunities.

B. Objectives

1. To provide a collection that will reflect broad subject coverage
with materials acquired in a variety of formats.

2. To facilitate continuing education both formal and informal.
3. To support educational and cultural activities of organizations within the area.

4. To provide story hours, summer reading programs and other special programs to
meet the needs of area residents.

C. Description of Service Area

1. Broken Bow is a Class II city with a 2020 population of 3,506 residents. The city
is the county seat of Custer County.

D. Cooperative Programs
1. Interlibrary loan
2. Cooperative loans with area daycares and preschools

3. Mid-Plains Community College extended area campus



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
CIRCULATION POLICY

Equitable access to information of all types is a high priority of the Broken Bow
Public Library. Members of the public are welcome to use materials in the library, and those
who are interested and agree to the policies listed here may borrow the resources of the
library for use outside of the library.

A. Membership Information

We do not have residential or age restrictions for library card holders. Borrowing privileges
are granted upon full completion of the appropriate Board-approved application. Only
individual cards will be issued after 1/1/2018; family cards will not be offered but families
(adult/spouse/child/other legal ward) may be linked on the circulation computer system.

Library cards are issued for a one-year period and may be renewed after staff checks that
patron information is current.

Temporary Accounts.

A temporary card may be issued to persons who will be temporarily residing in Broken Bow
for a deposit fee of $20.00. They need to register the same as any other patron, but must
include their permanent home address, temporary Broken Bow address, a working phone
number and reference. Temporary borrowers are limited to two items out at a time. When
the temporary cardholder no longer needs the card, the $20.00 deposit is refunded if all
borrowed materials are turned and not damaged.

B. Applications

1. All patrons must physically visit the library with a valid photo ID and proof of
current address to receive and activate their library cards. If your current address is
listed on your photo ID, no other documentation is needed.

2. Applicants who are under the age of 16 years must have a parent or legal guardian
present as well as the documentation listed above. Parents or legal guardians’
personal library cards must be in good standing to sign for a minor’s card.

3. Acceptable forms of photo identification include:

Current driver’s license
Current passport
Student ID

Military ID
Identification card



4. Acceptable items for proof of current address include, but are NOT limited to:

Bank or credit card statement

Utility bill

Voter ID card

Piece of mail with correct address postmarked within 30 days

5. New applicants are limited to two items checked out at any time until their six (6)
week probationary period is complete. After six weeks, if all borrowing requirements
are met, full-borrowing privileges will be granted. Failure to fulfill borrowing
requirements will result in the loss of checkout privileges.

6. Applications for library cards require patrons to share their name, mailing address
(and residence if different), phone, employment and/or school, and e-mail if
applicable, ID number, along with a valid reference. A signature on the application
indicates that the patron agrees to abide by the rules and regulations of the Broken
Bow Public Library.

7. If your card is lost or stolen, please notify us immediately. As soon as possible,
bring identification with you to the library to get a new card. There will be a $1 fee
for the card.

Loans and reserves
1. Procedures

a. To check out material, all borrowers must have a current library card
number in the library computer.

b. The Library Director with approval of the Board shall establish all loan
periods.

c. Books will be checked out for a two-week period and may be renewed for
another two weeks either in person or by calling the library. However, if any
item is on reserve for another patron that item is not renewable and must be
returned when due.

d. Magazines, DVDs, and audiobooks will be checked out for a one-week
period and may be renewed for another week either in person or by calling the
library. However, if any item is on reserve for another patron that item is not
renewable and must be returned when due.

e. All books marked as best sellers will be checked out for a one-week period.
[f the book is not on a reserve list for another patron, that book may be
renewed for one additional week.



f. Patrons are limited to having five (5) DVDs checked out at any one time per
household.

g. [tems, which are not circulated because of frequent in-house use or inability
to be replaced, include: reference materials, some genealogical materials, the
newest issues of periodicals, or other items as determined by the Library
Director.

h. Reserves may be placed on items currently not available because they are in
circulation or are not yet published or received.

2. Overdue Fines

The Broken Bow Public Library charges overdue fees as an incentive to return
materials on time. Overdue fees start the day after the due date of the item.

a. Fines for overdue materials are levied at the rate of 25 cents per item per
day. Maximum fine per item shall be $5.00.

b. Every Friday is “Fine Free” and overdue materials can be returned, and the
fines waived. Overdue materials can also be renewed that day without fines
accruing.

c. Patrons who have materials overdue by two weeks will be called and be
reminded during the call about “Fine Free Fridays.” Library accounts will be
restricted for fines totaling $5.00 and over and for material overdue more than
eight (8) weeks. Materials that are overdue more than eight weeks are not
eligible for fines being waived during “Fine Free Fridays.”

d. Patrons who have fines totaling $1.00 shall be restricted from checking
materials out until the fine is paid.

e. If borrowed materials are not returned or replacement costs and processing
fees paid within one month after written notification by library staff, the City
Attorney will be notified and legal action can be taken to get the materials

returned or fees paid.

f. Prior to any legal action, every attempt will be made to recover overdue
materials directly from the patron.

g. Fines automatically stop on a lost item when the loss is reported.

D. Replacement of Lost/Damaged Materials

1. Lost or damaged materials must be paid for by the borrower. Replacement cost for
the materials will be the price indicated in the library’s database record. Any



associated overdue fees on lost or damaged materials will also be paid for by the
borrower. This is because materials not returned on time are costly in terms of staff
time in getting overdue materials back.

2. The library does not provide refunds for lost and paid for materials even if the
original item is found.

3. Cases or bags for audio/visual materials and other accessories are valued at $1 each
if not returned by a patron.

Interlibrary loan

i Borrowing Items

a. The Broken Bow Public Library will use the most efficient means of
interlibrary loan available for its patrons to insure speedy delivery of
requested titles.

b. Patrons are required to pay for the return postage of the items received,
whether or not they check the items out. In addition, the patron must pay
for any assessed costs of obtaining an item through interlibrary loan
(rental, copies, fees, etc.) that go beyond budgeted staff and online time.

c. Because of the potentially high costs of replacing interlibrary loan items,
patrons are limited to having no more than five ILL items out at any given

time.

d. Patrons who lose materials received through ILL will be required to pay
the fine or replace the item according to the policies of the lending library.

2. Lending Items
a. Requests will be taken via the OCLC network.

b. The circulation period will be four (4) weeks, with one renewal allowed
when the item is not on reserve.

c. Borrowing libraries will be expected to reimburse the full cost of the item
if it is not returned within two (2) months of the due date.

d. Fines shall not be assessed.

e. All other circulation policies apply to ILL



F, Confidentiality of Library Records

1. State law stipulates confidentiality of library records, i.e. Law 84-712.05, “Records
which may be withheld from the public,” states that “The following records, unless publicly
disclosed in an open court, open administrative proceeding or open meeting or disclosed by a
public entity pursuant to its duties, may be withheld from the public by the lawful custodian
of the records:...(10) Records or portions of records kept by a publicly funded library which,
when examined with or without other records, revealed the identity of any library patrons
using the library’s materials or services.”

2. It is the policy of the Broken Bow Public Library to maintain complete
confidentiality of all library circulation record.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on September 12, 2011. Revised by the
Board on December 11, 2020.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT POLICY

The Broken Bow Public Library is a public institution established and funded by the City of
Broken Bow to fill the informational needs of this community. Patrons of the library include
not only citizens of Broken Bow, but also of the surrounding area. Library patrons come
from diverse educational, cultural, and economic backgrounds and display a wide variety of
interests, needs, values, and viewpoints; to remain relevant the library collection must do the
same.

A. The library gathers materials, both print and non-print, on subjects of interest to the
community. In collecting these materials, the library adheres to the principles embodied in
the Library Bill of Rights and this policy statement.

1. The library maintains a vigorous program on behalf of intellectual freedom.

2. Care will be taken so that no one patron or group unduly influences the selection
or withdrawal of library materials.

B. The library collection is kept relevant by adding purchases or donated items that enhance
existing resources.

1. Priorities of the Broken Bow Public Library collection consider the interests of
the community as well as the accessibility of information from other community
resources.

a. Items of local significance are added to the collection whenever possible
and are generally not discarded or circulated if deemed irreplaceable.

b. Popular fiction and non-fiction titles for all ages constitute major emphasis
of the library’s collection.

c. Periodical titles owned include those covering current issues, popular
culture, hobbies, and regional news. Scholarly journals are not a standard
part of the library’s collection.

d. The library maintains a video collection of instructional videos,
documentaries, and films for all ages.

e. Collections of specialty items (i.e. cake pans) are added if public interest
warrants and resources are available.



2. Selection of materials to be added, whether purchased or donated, follows

standard guidelines.

The final responsibility for selection of library materials rests with the
Library Director who operates within the framework of policies set by the
Broken Bow Library Board.

At least one of the following criteria will be used in material selection:
needs and interests of the library’s users and anticipated users, accuracy
and responsibility of the author, effective expression, significance of the
subject, or the item’s relationship to the rest of the collection.

Selection criteria for audio-visual and other non-print materials include
such factors as artistic and technical standards in addition to content-
related values.

Standard selection tools such as, but not limited to, book reviews from
professional journals, best seller lists, and other professional library
publications are used to determine usefulness of all print and non-print
materials.

Patron requests are considered when it is felt the material suggested will
be of use in the collection.

3. Additions to the library’s collection are dependent to some extent upon available

The library secures the best discount possible.

Acquisition records show what is on order, what has been received, and
current budget expenditures, balances, and encumbrance.

Orders for library materials are placed at intervals throughout the year to
insure a regular flow of acquisitions.

C. Because the Broken Bow Public Library cannot purchase all materials that are requested
by patrons, interlibrary loan is used to provide patrons with access to materials beyond the
scope of the local collection. Use of the interlibrary loan is dependent on the good standing
of the patron (see the circulation policy).

D. Weeding is an important part of collection development.

L

The collection is systematically weeded to make the library’s holdings more
attractive and easier to use and to allow space for new purchases.

Weeding criteria includes obsolete, inaccurate, or outdated information, little or
no circulation, damaged or dirty condition, duplicates no longer needed.



3. Weeded materials are offered to the public by the Friends of the Broken Bow

Public Library.

E. Method for handling complaints:

L.

If, at any time, a patron of the Broken Bow Public Library believes that material
is inappropriate for the collection; he/she may file a written Request for the
Reconsideration of Materials. If the patron feels there is a problem with or
violation of Library Board policy, the patron may file a Written Request for
Policy Review.

The Library Director will consider the Request for Reconsideration of Materials
or the Request for Policy Review and will respond in writing to the complainant
within seven working days.

3. If the response of the Library Director does not satisfy the patron, he/she may
schedule a time to appear before the Library Board concerning the complaint.
The Library Director will schedule the meeting at least one week before the board
meeting to be put on agenda.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on September 12, 2011. Revised by the

Board on January 8§, 2021.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
EMERGENCY AND SAFETY POLICY

The Library Director, along with the Board President, are responsible for establishing
procedures to deal with medical, weather emergencies and other disasters. The Library Staff
should be acquainted with the procedures, so they handle a situation if it arises. The Library
Director is responsible for organizing the library’s response to an emergency. In the absence
of the Director, responsibility lies with the other staff on duty in an order established by the
Director. If necessary, advice of the Board President or any other Trustee should be sought.
The procedures to be followed are as follows:

Medical Emergency

Patron/staff
1. Ifserious, call 911
2. Get the person’s name, address, and phone number
3. Offer to contact a family member or friend
4. Call the person’s home if necessary
5. Contact family member, friend to transport them for medical care, if
necessary
6. Write up the incident as soon as possible afterwards and present a copy
to the City Administrator
Fire
1. Call9l1l
2. Evacuate the building if flames, smoke, or fumes are evident
3. Use a fire extinguisher if appropriate
a. Locations of fire extinguishers:
i. Behind the circulation desk
ii. Storage room by donor wall
iii. Storage room by kids non-fiction area
iv. Hallway going to the multi-purpose rooms (East wall)
v. Multi-Purpose Room A (West wall)
vi. Multi-Purpose Room B (West wall)
4. Do not use water on an electrical fire
5. Use CO (2) on computers
6. Unplug electrical equipment if on fire
Tornado

Tornado Watch:
A tornado watch is broadcast over the radio when the National Weather
Service indicates that conditions are such that a tornado could occur.



Tornado Warning:
A tornado warning is broadcast over the radio when the National Weather
Service indicates that a tornado has been spotted.

1.

2.

QUICKLY announce to patrons and staff that a tornado has been
sighted within the Broken Bow area

Request that individuals who do not leave go to the patrons’
bathrooms and/or hallway by the bathrooms within the library until the
alert is cancelled.

Station a staff member within sight of the front door to direct people
who may come into the building from outdoors.

[f the warning is not over by closing time and there are still patrons in
the building, stay with them until the alert has been cancelled, then ask
them to please go home or call someone to come and take them home.
If a tornado hits the area, keep people in the safety of the library and
contact emergency management authorities for instructions. If the
library phone or cell phones are operational, allow patrons to contact
family members.

Inclement Winter Weather

In case of snowstorms, the Library Director can, after contacting the Library Board
President, Vice-President, or Secretary, elect to close the library early. No staff
person shall leave the library before all patrons have safely left or contacted someone
for transportation.

The library will follow any closings that are announced by the City of Broken Bow
about closing due to weather.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on September 12, 2011. Revised by the

Board on February 11, 2021.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
EXHIBITS AND DISPLAYS POLICY

To fulfill its mission as this community’s center for a lifetime of learning and literacy, it is
necessary to effectively convey those services and resources to the public by providing an
informative and inviting atmosphere in the library. Library-initiated displays and exhibits are
an effective and essential component of the library's mission.

Categories of Library-initiated displays and exhibits may include, but are not limited, to the
following:

1. Promotions of literacy and the freedom to read

2. Promotion of library activities, services, and resources

3. Seasonal displays

4. Current topics

5. Community events, organizations, and other Items of community interest

6. Exhibits of art and artifacts

The Library may request, or consider requests from, organizations or individuals to display
literature, materials, and information in keeping with the Library’s chosen display and exhibit
themes. The Library does not assume responsibility for theft of or damage to such items.
While information about admission fees, registration fees and contacts may be provided, no
direct monetary solicitations or items marked for sale will be permitted unless featured in a
Library program.

Final responsibility for library-initiated displays and exhibits, and their content, rests with the
Library Director. The Director may delegate this authority to staff members in their various
areas of responsibility.

It is the intention of library-initiated displays and exhibits to inform educate and enlighten
library patrons, not to indicate the Library's approval or disapproval of the ideas expressed in
these displays and exhibits. The library attempts to meet the needs of the total community
through these displays and exhibits, recognizing that some displayed materials may be
viewed as controversial by individual citizens. It is the responsibility of the library user to
make use of displays and exhibits in accordance with his/her tastes.

All displays and exhibits throughout all areas of the library are subject to this policy.
Unauthorized displays and exhibits will be discarded by Library staff.

Reviewed by the board on April 9, 2021



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
POLICY on GIFTS, BEQUESTS, MEMORIALS

Community support is vital to the Broken Bow Public Library. Gifts and donations to the
library are always encouraged. Donations may also be made to the Broken Bow Library
Foundation or the Friends of the Broken Bow Library, both 501(c) (3) organizations that
exist to expand what the Broken Bow Public Library is able to do with city funding.

A. Donations to the collection

1. The library accepts gifts of books, periodicals, audio-visual materials, etc. with
the understanding that they will be added to the library collections only when
needed.

2. The library will not affix a value for tax purposes to such gift; this is the
responsibility of the donor. However, the library will, upon request, acknowledge
the gift with a receipt or letter specifying the type, quantity, and condition of the
gift for the donor’s records.

3. The same principles of selection which are applied to purchases are applied to
gifts. Some gifts may not be used in the collection for these reasons:

a. May be an item of which the library already has a sufficient number.

b. May not be of sufficient present reference or circulation value to the
library.

c. May be in poor condition.
B. Major Gifts

1. Unrestricted gifts of money will be gratefully accepted by the Library Foundation
Board.

2. Other donations, such as restricted cash gifts, land, property, etc. will be reviewed
by the Library Director and Foundation Board before acceptance.

C. Memorial Gifts
All memorial and gift books added to the collection will include, if requested, an
appropriate book plate identifying donor and purpose of donation.

D. Acknowledgment
The Library Director shall notify the Board periodically of gifts received and gifts may be
acknowledged by appropriate means.

Revised by the Board May 14, 2021



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
INTELLECTUAL FREEDOM POLICY

According to the American Library Association, “Intellectual freedom is the right of every
individual to both seek and receive information from all points of view without restriction. It
provides for free access to all expressions of ideas through which any and all sides of a
question, cause or movement may be explored.” The Broken Bow Public Library strives to
represent in its collections and services a wide variety of viewpoints and adopts the following
statement outlining the library’s position.

LIBRARY BILL OF RIGHTS

The American Library Association affirms that all libraries are forums for information and
ideas, and that the following basic policies should guide their services.

L

II.

L.

IV.

VL

Books and other library resources should be provided for the interest,
information, and enlightenment of all people of the community the library
serves. Materials should not be excluded because of the origin, background, or
views of those contributing to their creation.

Libraries should provide materials and information presenting all points of
view on current and historical issues. Materials should not be proscribed or
removed because of partisan or doctrinal disapproval.

Libraries should challenge censorship in the fulfillment of their responsibility
to provide information and enlightenment.

Libraries should cooperate with all persons and groups concerned with
resisting abridgment of free expression and free access to ideas.

A person’s right to use a library should not be denied or abridged because of
origin, age, background, or views.

Libraries that make exhibit spaces and meeting rooms available to the public
they serve should make such facilities available on an equitable basis,
regardless of the beliefs or affiliations of individuals or groups requesting
their use.

Adopted June 19, 1939, by the ALA Council; amended October 14, 1944; June 18, 1948;
February 2, 1961; June 27, 1967; January 23, 1980; inclusion of “age” reaffirmed January 23,

1996.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on September 12, 2011.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY PUBLIC INTERNET AND
COMPUTER/LAPTOP USE POLICY

The Broken Bow Public Library is providing access to the Internet to enhance the
information and learning opportunities for the citizens of the library's service area. The Board
of Trustees has established the Internet use policy to ensure appropriate and effective use of
this resource.

Access to the Internet is free and available to all patrons; however, this service may be
restricted at any time for use not consistent with the guidelines. Parents of minor children
must assume responsibility for their children's use of the library's Internet service; prior to
being granted access to the Internet, anyone under 18 years of age, must have a parent or
guardian sign the Internet Use Agreement for minors. All public access users must sign in at
the circulation desk and sign the computer/laptop loan rider prior to beginning their session.

Patrons who access the Internet using personal devices with wireless connectivity must still
abide by all other library guidelines.

The library provides access to a wireless black and white printer. The charge is 10 cents per
side.

The Broken Bow Public Library provides laptop computers for loan (as available) to patrons
over the age of 14, to use inside the library with valid photo identification and a signed
computer/laptop loan rider

The Broken Bow Public Library upholds the rights of confidentiality and privacy for all
library users.

Library staff cannot be responsible for providing in-depth training on the Internet or other
computer functions. However, authorized staff will do their best to introduce the computer
users to the basics of the Internet and other in-house computer programs.

Expectations:

Users should be aware that the inappropriate use of electronic information resources can be a
violation of local, state, and federal laws and can lead to prosecution. The user will be held
responsible for his/her actions using the Internet. Users are expected to abide by the policies
below which include generally accepted rules of network etiquette. Unacceptable uses of the
service will result in the suspension or revocation of Internet use privileges.

Warnings:

The Internet is a decentralized, unmoderated global network; the Broken Bow Public Library
has no control over the content found there. The library will not censor or filter access to
material nor protect users from offensive information, and it is not responsible for the
availability and accuracy of information found on the Internet.



The library cannot assure that data or files downloaded by users are virus-free. The library is
not responsible for damages to equipment or data on a user's personal computer from the use
of data downloaded from the library's Internet service.

The use of the Internet and e-mail is not guaranteed to be private. Messages relating to or in
support of illegal activities will be reported to the proper authorities.

Guidelines:

o Users may use the Internet for research and the acquisition of information to address
their educational, vocational, cultural, and recreational needs.

o Users may use the Internet for the receipt and transmission of electronic mail (e-
mail); the library is unable to manage e-mail accounts for any organizations or
individuals.

o Internet use is offered in sixty (60) minute sessions for research and thirty (30) minute
sessions for entertainment on a first-come, first-served basis; each user is allowed one
session--if there is no patron waiting for the service at the end of a session, the user
can have another session.

o Users will respect and uphold copyright laws and all other applicable laws and
regulations; they will not use it for illegal purposes.

o Users will respect the rights and privacy of others by not accessing private files.

o Users agree not to incur any costs for the library through their use of the Internet
service.

o Users shall not create and/or distribute computer viruses over the Internet.

o Users shall not deliberately or willfully cause damage to computer equipment,
programs, or parameters.

o Users’ library cards must be in good standing before accessing the library computers.

o Users are not allowed to have food or beverages near laptops or computers.

o Users are not allowed to download, modify, or save files to the computers.

o Users cannot take laptops outside of the library building.

o Users should never leave laptops unattended.

o Laptop users under the age of 14 must be accompanied by a responsible adult or
guardian.

o Users must turn laptops in to staff, 30 minutes before closing unless prior
arrangements are made. The borrower must remain at the circulation desk to make
sure that all equipment pieces are accounted for and that no damage has occurred.

o User can check out a laptop for a two-hour period- which may be renewed if no one is
waiting.

o Ifany technical problems are encountered, borrowers are to immediately report the
problem(s) to the library staff.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY COMPUTER/LAPTOP LOAN RIDER

= [ agree that the Broken Bow Public Library shall not have any responsibility or
liability for any claims relating to loss, damage or interception of any information,

data, work product, or other material viewed, searched or stored on the laptop or its

accessories.

= [ agree that the Broken Bow Public Library shall not have any responsibility for
liability for any claims relating to the use or functioning of the hardware or software
included with the borrowed laptop and accessories.

= [ understand that:

l.

5.

The library's wireless network is not secure. Information sent from or to the
computer can be captured by anyone else with a wireless device and the
appropriate software.

Once the laptop is returned, or a computer turned off, all data on the hard
drive will be lost.

Library staff is not able to provide technical assistance and no guarantee can
be provided that a wireless connection will be available at any given time.

Broken Bow Public Library does not assume any responsibility, nor shall it
have any liability for the safety of the equipment or for the laptop
configuration, security, or data files resulting from connection to the library's
network.

The Broken Bow Public Library does not filter or monitor the computers.

[ agree to all terms and conditions listed in the Broken Bow Public Library Internet and
Laptop/ Computer Policy and acknowledge that I will pay all costs associated with any
damage to, replacement of, or theft of any laptop computer and related equipment checked
out under this agreement. Furthermore, I understand and agree that failure to follow all
written policies of this program may result in fees and/or loss of future privileges.

Signature:

Date:

Full Name (Last, First)

Valid Photo ID Number

Address, City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number




BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY INTERNET USE AGREEMENT FOR MINORS
As the parent/legal guardian of , [ give
my permission for him/her to use a laptop at the Broken Bow Public Library. I have read the
Broken Bow Public Computer/Laptop and Internet Usage Policy and understand the stance of
the library on laptop and computer use. By signing this, I accept financial responsibility for
the computer and all its components (hardware and software). [ will reimburse the library for
any damages if the laptop or any software installed thereon is damaged, lost, or stolen while
checked out to my child.
It is my responsibility to provide the guidance to ensure my child's use of the library's laptop
is both appropriate and safe. It is also my responsibility to share the library's laptop policies
with my child, covering these basic rules:

= The laptop is for in-facility use only it cannot be removed from the library.

The laptop cannot be left unattended at any time.

= None of the settings or configurations on the laptop can be altered and nothing
can be saved to the hard drive of the laptop.

= The loan period for borrowing a laptop is two (2) hours. Laptops must be
returned to staff at the circulation desk at least thirty (30) minutes prior to the
library closing, even if this does not allow for the entire two-hour loan period.
The laptop must be returned with the power on so that staff can check all the
components.

= When the loan period has lapsed, the laptop must be returned to staff at the
circulation desk. Until the laptop has been placed in the hands of library
staff members and checked in, it is the responsibility of the patron to
which it is checked out or his/her guardian (if under the age of 18.)

= The library will not be held responsible for any damage or loss of data or
media due to any cause while using a library laptop computer.

= Library wireless connections are not secure and appropriate caution must be
taken with personal information. The laptop user is expected to abide by the
same Internet Use Policy used for the PC workstations.

By signing this document, I verify that [ have read and understand the Broken Bow Public
Library Public Internet and Computer/Laptop Policy.

Name Library Card #
Please print clearly
Child's name Child's age:
Please print clearly
Signature of parent/legal guardian Date

Adopted by the Board February 9, 2022



Broken Bow Public Library
Makerspace STEAM kit Policy

The Broken Bow Public Library offers makerspace kits for patrons to use in the library.
These kits are for hands-on learning, creating, collaborating, and inventing. All users are
expected to read and follow the policy as outlined below. The makerspace items are available
during the library’s open hours, but users will be asked to return kits they have borrowed 15
minutes prior to library closing.

A. Conditions of Use

1.

Everyone is welcome to use the makerspace kits at no charge. Users must have a
valid Broken Bow Public Library card and not have any fines or overdues. If an
individual is visiting the community and will not have need of a library card, they
must complete a Broken Bow Public Library Makerspace Use Agreement. All
users with be given a Makerspace Use Agreement.

The makerspace kits are available to all ages. However, an adult must accompany
users that are under the age of 8.

The makerspace kits are available on a first-come, first-serve basis and will be
checked out at the circulation desk by the users.

B. General Guidelines for Use

All who use the makerspace kits must comply with the library’s rules and
regulations, including the library’s Code of Behavior.

Makerspace kits must be returned in the same condition in which they were
received.

. The user accepts financial responsibility for all damage caused to equipment

beyond normal wear. The user agrees to pay for the loss of or damage to any
items in the makerspace kits and further agrees to accept the library staff’s
assessment of fair restitution for damage and/or loss of items.

All kits must stay in the library and the user agrees to clean up their workspace
before returning the kit to the circulation desk. The user agrees to inform library
staff in case they are unable to return a work area or equipment to its original
state.

Any issues with the makerspace kits should be reported immediately to the library
staff.

The library staff is responsible for the cleaning and disinfecting of the makerspace
1tems.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on March 14, 2018, amended
November 12, 2021.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
MAKERSPACE STEAM KITS USE AGREEMENT

Welcome to the Broken Bow Public Library! Prior to checking out any makerspace kits,
please review the attached policy. Acceptance of and compliance with the policy, as well as
completion of this agreement, are required for your use of the kits.

Name

Address

Phone #

Reference (name and phone number for local contact

Broken Bow Public Library, 626 South D Street, Broken Bow, NE 68822
www.brokenbowlibrary.net
308.872.2927

Staff member initials Date




Broken Bow Public Library Makerspace

The Broken Bow Public Library offers a makerspace area for patrons to use in the library. This

equipment is for hands-on learning, creating, collaboration, and inventing. All users are expected

to read and follow the policy as outlined below. The makerspace is available during the library’s

open hours and will close 15 minutes prior to closing time.

Patron Requirements

1.

Makers must hold a Broken Bow Library card in good standing. *Maker will now be
referred to as “Patron”.

Patrons must complete a waiver and any required machine specific training before using
or reserving makerspace equipment.

Patrons ages 14-17 may use the makerspace alone, after having a parent or guardian sign
a waiver with them.

Patrons ages 8-13 may use the makerspace if always supervised by a trained parent,
guardian, or a supervised library program.

Patrons agree to abide by the Broken Bow Public Library Patron Responsibility Policy.
The library may host special programs or events for minors; a parent or guardian Liability
agreement is still required, and supervision will be provided by library staff.

Patron Reservations

1.

Safety

Makerspace equipment and items will be available at a first come, first serve basis. There
will be a 2-hour time limit on the makerspace equipment. Library programs will have
priority.

Every Patron must complete the safety and operational training for each device in the
Makerspace. You must sign up for individual device training. Library staff will guide you
through equipment specific, hands-on safety, operational training. Patrons will be
required to watch a few training videos and answer questions before being able to use a
device.

Patrons may know how to use a tool and have undergone training in another makerspace,
workplace or at home. However, training completed elsewhere does not count as training
at Broken Bow Library.

Headphones, ear buds and cell phone use are prohibited while operating machinery. It is
not safe to work with dangling cords and without proper hearing ability. Clothing must
not have drawstrings, necklaces, neckties, hair must be pulled back.

Patrons should not work in an altered state that could affect their safety and others around
them.

Patrons should familiarize themself with emergency procedures, know where all exits are
and, know where the extinguishers are kept.

The library will provide all safety equipment patrons will need to safely operate each
device.



Patrons agree to report any accident or incident that occurs in the Broken Bow Library
makerspace area to a staff member. Failure to report an accident or incident may lead to
loss of Makerspace/library privileges.

Patrons agree that if any tool or piece of equipment becomes unsafe or in a state of
disrepair, he/she will immediately discontinue use of the tool and notify the library staff.
Patrons should shut off items when they are finished using them, and let items cool first.

Clean Environment

L.

It is everyone’s job to keep the makerspace clean and orderly. Devices should be cleaned,
all debris should be removed and disposed of appropriately.

Tools and equipment should be put away before leaving the area.

Broken Bow Library is not a storage facility. Projects should be taken when the reserved
time is finished.

All devices used in the Makerspace are to be returned in the same condition as they were
issued, normal wear and tear excepted. Patron agrees to pay for the loss or damage,
dirtiness, delinquency and/or loss of items in part or total. This restitution amount could
equal the replacement cost of the item.

Library staff is responsible for sanitizing the equipment.

Computer Use Policies

1.

Patrons agree to abide by Broken Bow Library computer policies while using
Makerspace computers.

Patrons should be courteous to other library patrons and other Makerspace users.

Patrons accept responsibility for the security of information they give on the web, such as
personal information and credit card numbers.

Patrons should never modify any hardware or software on the Makerspace computers.
When creating digital content with the library’s equipment, patrons should remember to
bring their own storage devices or store their work via an online cloud service. The
library’s computers do not store individual work or projects. The library is not
responsible for lost or deleted information.

Makerspace Legality

1.

All Makerspace devices shall be used only for lawful purposes. They should not be:

e Prohibited by local, state, or federal law.

e Unsafe, harmful, dangerous or poses an immediate threat to the well-being of
others. (Such use may violate the terms of use of the manufacturer.)

e Inviolation of another’s intellectual property rights. For example, using devices
to replicate someone else’s designs or articles of manufacture may infringe the
copyright, patent, or trademark protection.

e Deemed to be offensive or inappropriate in a public setting, as determined by
staff.



Broken Bow Library is not responsible if a project is destroyed, does not
print/burn/cut correctly, or does not work. Patron is required to pay for successful or
failed projects when using library consumables.

The patron understands that Broken Bow Library is not responsible for any
manufacturing defects or the quality of workmanship of any of the tools, materials, or
equipment supplied by Broken Bow Library.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on December 10, 2021.



Broken Bow Public Library Makerspace Use and Release of Liability Agreement

This agreement is made this  day of 20 , by and between
Broken Bow Public Library and

(Maker/Patron).

In consideration for Maker’s participation in the use of the Makerspace at the Broken Bow Public
Library, Maker (whom now be known as Patron) agrees as follows:

L.

Conditions of Use. The Patron agrees that the (a) Patron has received the Policy and agrees to its
terms, which are incorporated by reference into this agreement, and the (b) Patron has been
trained by Library Staff or participated in a Library workshop regarding the use of the
Makerspace. The Patron agrees to comply with all Library policies, including the payment of any
fees associated with the use of the Makerspace. If the Patron is under the age of 18, a parent or
legal guardian agrees to the Release of Liability on behalf of the minor child and the term
“Patron” applies to both the minor child and any parent or legal guardian.

Assumption of Risk. Patron acknowledges the inherent risk in the use of tools, equipment,
devices, and hazardous materials of any kind commonly used in electronics construction,
fabrication, software design and other technology related activities and that Patron’s participation
in such activities and/or use of Makerspace may result in injury illness, death or damage to Patron
or Patron’s personal property.

Further, such risks and dangers may be caused by Patron or other Patrons. Finally, such injury,
illness death or damage to Patron or Patron’s personal property, may arise from foreseeable or
unforeseeable causes. Patron, and for such heirs, family, estate, herby fully assumes all such
risks (known, unknown and/or unforeseen) and any others which arise in connection with the use
of the Makerspace at the Broken Bow Public Library.

Release of Liability. Patron, including the Patron’s heirs, family, estate, releases the Broken Bow
Public Library and the City of Broken Bow, its staff, boards members, exhibitors, guests, fellow
patrons from any liability, claims, losses, demands, causes of action whatsoever arising or that
could arise out of any damage, loss or injury to Patron or Patron’s property while using the
Makerspace of Broken Bow Public Library and/or using any equipment owned by Broken Bow
Public Library or another Patron or guest of Broken Bow Library regardless of whether such loss
or injury is as a result of negligence of Broken Bow Library or its Patrons or guest is a result of
some other cause. This release includes all damages, costs, medical costs, expenses, attorneys’
fees, and any other losses.

Covenant Not to Sue. Patron agrees that Patron will not, under any circumstances, initiate any
legal action or administrative proceeding against Broken Bow Library and the City of Broken
Bow, its staff, board members, fellow patrons, and employees nor will Patron assist in the
prosecution of any such legal action filed by another, arising out of an injury to the person or
property of Patron while participating in the use of the Makerspace in the Broken Bow Library.
This covenant extends to include the family, estate, heirs, of Patron.
Third Party Indemnification. Patron indemnifies, saves, and hold harmless Broken Bow
Library and the City of Broken Bow, its Patrons, agents and assigns from any and all losses,
claims, demands, causes of actions or proceeding of every kind or character which may be



initiated by any other persons or organization and which arise directly or indirectly from the
actions of Patron while engaged in the use of the Makerspace and/or by using the Broken Bow
Library’s equipment, materials, space, or educational opportunities. Patron hereby acknowledges
that Patron has carefully read all the above provisions, fully understands, and voluntarily signs
this document as a condition of use of the Makerspace at Broken Bow Library.

Damage of tools and equipment. Maker agrees to use the facilities, tools, and materials in a safe
way, and to alert the Broken Bow Library staff, and/or program leaders when facilities, tools, and
materials are being used in a way that could cause harm to themselves or others. All damage to
equipment or tools will be reported immediately.

Signature
Date

Printed Name Library Card
Number

Email
Phone

Emergency Contact (Name and Phone)

Any Maker under eighteen years of age must also obtain the following consent and release before
using the Makerspace at the Broken Bow Public Library.

I, (print name), am the parent of legal guardian of

(print name). I consent to this and state that [ have read the above release,

have no questions about its meaning and voluntarily accept the terms of this release by signing
my name below.

Parent/Guardian Signature
Date

Printed Name




BROKEN BOW PUBLIC OCULUS QUEST 2 USE AGREEMENT FOR MINORS
As the parent/legal guardian of , [ give my
permission for him/her to use the Oculus Quest 2 VR equipment at the Broken Bow Public
Library. Ihave read the Broken Bow Public Library Oculus Quest 2 Usage Policy and
understand the stance of the library on Oculus Quest 2 use. By signing this, [ accept
financial responsibility for the Oculus and all its components (hardware and software). I will
reimburse the library for any damages if the Oculus or any software installed thereon is
damaged, lost, or stolen while checked out to my child.

[t is my responsibility to provide the guidance to ensure my child's use of the library's Oculus
is both appropriate and safe. It is also my responsibility to share the library's Oculus policies
with my child, covering these basic rules:

The Oculus is for in-facility use only it cannot be removed from the library.
The Oculus cannot be left unattended at any time. The Oculus must be
used in the designated teen area in the library.

Patrons must be at least 12 years of age or in the 6th grade to use the Oculus
Quest 2 without supervision. Users in 5" grade and below must be
accompanied by an adult while using the Oculus or a member of library staff.
All minors under the age of 18 must have a Waiver of Liability signed by a
parent or guardian prior to their use of the Oculus Quest 2.

None of the settings or configurations on the Oculus can be altered and no
games or programs are to be downloaded by the user. The library’s Oculus is
available for use with programs picked out and downloaded by library staff
ONLY.

The loan period for borrowing the Oculus is 30 minutes. At the beginning of
this period, the user must sign in with the current time and their first name.
The Oculus must be returned with the power on so that staff can check all the
components.

The Oculus is available in 30-minute sessions or until someone else signs
in to use the Oculus. Until the Oculus has been placed in the hands of
library staff members and checked in, it is the responsibility of the patron
to which it is checked out or his/her guardian (if under the age of 18.)

Library wireless connections are not secure and appropriate caution must be
taken with personal information.

The Oculus is available during normal library hours. If needed for a program,
library programs will take precedence.



By signing this document, [ verify that [ have read and understand the Broken Bow Public
Library Oculus Quest 2 Policy.

Name Library Card #
Please print clearly
Child's name Child's age:
Please print clearly
Signature of parent/legal guardian Date

Adopted by the Board March 9%, 2022



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC OCULUS QUEST 2 USE AGREEMENT
[ have read the Broken Bow Public Library Oculus Quest 2 Usage Policy and understand the
stance of the library on Oculus Quest 2 use. By signing this, I accept financial responsibility
for the Oculus and all its components (hardware and software). I will reimburse the library
for any damages if the Oculus or any software installed thereon is damaged, lost, or stolen
while checked out to me.
It is my responsibility to use the library's Oculus in appropriate and safe ways. It is also my
responsibility to understand the library's Oculus policies and will follow these basic rules:

The Oculus is for in-facility use only it cannot be removed from the library.
The Oculus cannot be left unattended at any time. The Oculus must be
used in the designated teen area in the library.

Patrons must be at least 12 years of age or in the 6th grade to use the Oculus
Quest 2 without supervision. Users in 5" grade and below must be
accompanied by an adult while using the Oculus or a member of library staff.
All minors under the age of 18 must have a Waiver of Liability signed by a
parent or guardian prior to their use of the Oculus Quest 2.

None of the settings or configurations on the Oculus can be altered and no
games or programs are to be downloaded by the user. The library’s Oculus is
available for use with programs picked out and downloaded by library staff
ONLY.

The loan period for borrowing the Oculus is 30 minutes. At the beginning of
this period, the user must sign in with the current time and their first name.
The Oculus must be returned with the power on so that staff can check all the
components.

The Oculus is available in 30-minute sessions or until someone else signs
in to use the Oculus. Until the Oculus has been placed in the hands of
library staff members and checked in, it is the responsibility of the patron
to which it is checked out or his/her guardian (if under the age of 18.)

Library wireless connections are not secure and appropriate caution must be
taken with personal information.

The Oculus is available during normal library hours. If needed for a program,
library programs will take precedence.



By signing this document, [ verify that [ have read and understand the Broken Bow Public
Library Oculus Quest 2 Policy.

Name Library Card #
Please print clearly
Signature Date

Adopted by the Board March 9%, 2022



Broken Bow Public Library Oculus Quest 2 Waiver of Liability

In using the Broken Bow Public Library’s Oculus Quest 2 Virtual Reality
equipment, I agree to the following:

e [ (or my child/dependent/minor) am using the virtual reality equipment
voluntarily.

e [ acknowledge the risks involved in the use of virtual reality equipment. These
include but are not limited to dizziness, minor nausea, motion illness, seizures,
some medical conditions may be etc.

e [ understand that while wearing the virtual reality headset, [ will not be able to
see my real-life environment and I agree to use caution as a result.

e [ assume all the physical, psychological, and financial risks associated with
the use of virtual reality equipment.

e If | require medical care or treatment, I agree to be financially responsible for
all costs incurred because of such treatment.

e [ agree to make every effort to obey safety precautions as listed in writing or
as explained to me verbally.

e By signing this waiver, I hereby release, hold harmless, and forever discharge
from any liability the Broken Bow Public Library, for all claims, damages,
causes of action, judgments (including costs and expenses), or liability arising
directly or indirectly from damages or injury that [ may sustain as a result of my
use of the library’s virtual reality equipment. [ acknowledge that I have read,
have understood, and will adhere to the terms of this Policy and Waiver of
Liability Agreement.



Signature Date

Minor’s Name Parent/ Guardian Name

Parent/Guardian Signature Date

Adopted by the Board March 9%, 2022



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
LIBRARY USER BEHAVIOR POLICY

Guidelines for Library User Behavior

Section 51-212 of the Nebraska Statutes specifically give public libraries the power to
regulate the use of the library and to exclude from the library persons who violate or refuse to
comply with the library’s rules and regulations.

With the above statement in mind, the Library Board of Trustees of the Broken Bow Public
Library has approved these rules/guidelines in an effort to set a standard of acceptable
behavior conducive to appropriate public library use. These rules/guidelines have been
approved in order to protect the rights of all who utilize the library or are on library premises,
including patrons and employees, to preserve and protect library materials and facilities, and
to maintain the environment and atmosphere essential to the proper operation of the library.
Acceptable standards of behavior include but are not limited to this list.

l.

This Policy provided guidance to all who utilize the library or on library premises.
This includes employees, patrons, or individuals on library property. Hereinafter
these persons will be collectively referred to as “Library User” or “Library Users”

Library Users shall respect the rights of staff and others present in the library and
shall not behave in any manner that can reasonably be expected to disturb other
persons. Library Users shall not interfere with the right of others to use the library or
with employees’ performance of duties. Examples of prohibited behavior include but
are not limited to: noisy or boisterous activities, staring at or following another
person, singing or talking loudly to self or others, making threats of any kind, obscene
or abusive language or acts, destroying property.

Speaking should be kept to normal conversational levels when visiting in person or
when using a cell phone. Audio equipment shall not be audible to other people.

Weapons of any kind are not allowed.

Use of tobacco, alcohol, or illegal drugs is prohibited. Library Users showing signs of
drunkenness or drug abuse will be asked to leave the premises.

Appropriate dress is required (shirt and shoes).
Animals other than registered service animals are allowed only by permission of the
Library Director or Assistant Director. All registered service animals are allowed in

the library with their owner.

Compliance with the Public Internet and Computer Acceptable Use Policy is
mandatory.

Any person not complying with these rules or with local or state law shall be asked to
leave the library premises and may receive a temporary or permanent ban from future



10.

1.

library use.

A written notice of eviction will be prepared in connection with any suspension from
library premises and, if a suspended person enters or attempts to enter the premises
before library privileges are restored, he/she will be subject to criminal prosecution
for trespass as allowed by law.

Library Users temporarily or permanently banned from the library may appeal this
decision by contacting the Library Director at least one week before the next regular
meeting of the Broken Bow Public Library Board. The person making the appeal
should attend the Library Board meeting when the matter is on the agenda.

Unattended Children Policy

In order to prevent undue disruption of normal library activities, to provide for the
general welfare of all persons using the library, and to provide for the general safety
of children using the Broken Bow Public Library, the following policies are adopted:

l.

The Broken Bow Public Library assumes no responsibility for children left
unattended on library premises.

[f a child appears to be left unattended when the library is closing, the staff
will attempt to find the adult responsible for their care. If the adult cannot be
located or contacted, the staff will contact the police department for
assistance. The staff will under no circumstance take the child out of the
building.

Abuse of Library Policy and Restriction of Privileges

. The use of the library and its services may be denied temporarily for due

cause. Such causes may include failure to return materials or to pay fines,
destruction of library property, or any other illegal, disruptive, or
objectionable disturbance on library premises.

Library accounts will be restricted for fines totaling $5.00 and over and for
material overdue more than 8§ weeks. Materials that are overdue more than 8
weeks are not eligible for fines being waived during “Fine Free Fridays.”

Library Users who refuse to abide by library policies may be restricted from
the library. Those who are unwilling to leave will be subject to prevailing
laws.

Denials of computer use may occur because of any unacceptable use (see
Public Internet and Computer Acceptable Use Policy).



UNDERSTANDING OF LIBRARY USER BEHAVIOR POLICY

Section 51-212 of the Nebraska Statutes specifically gives public libraries the power to
regulate the use of the library and to exclude from the library premises persons who violate
or refuse to comply with the library’s rules and regulations.

Therefore, the Library Board of Trustees of the Broken Bow Public library has approved
rules/regulations to set a standard of acceptable behavior conducive to appropriate public
library use. The rules/guidelines have been approved in order to protect the rights of all who
utilize the library or are on library premises including patrons and employees, to preserve and
protect library materials and facilities, and to maintain the environment and atmosphere
essential to the proper operation of the library.

In an effort to clarify the Library User Behavior Policy and consequences that may result in
violating said policy, copies of the policy and this document have been provided to the
individual who signed below and violations have been explained in full.

Violation of the Library User Behavior Policy will result in the following action(s):
1. The offender will be given one verbal warning.

2. Ifthe violation continues, the offender will be instructed to leave and will not
be permitted access to the library for a period of one (1) week.

3. Ifthe offender refuses to leave, the police will be called to remove him/her
and the offender will not be permitted access to the library for a period of one
(1) month.

4. If any person who has received a month suspension again violates any of the
above rules, he/she will be barred from the library building and property for a
period of one (1) year.

5. Chronic offenders (those who are asked to leave the premises on three
separate occasions within a six (6) month period) will be barred from the
library building and property for one (1) year.

6. A written notice of eviction will be prepared in connection with any
suspension from library premises and, if a suspended person enters or attempts
to enter the premises before library privileges are restored, he/she will be
subject to criminal prosecution for trespass as allowed by law.



Signed (Parent/Guardian if a minor)

Date Home/cell phone
Work phone

Revised by the Board September 9, 2022



Broken Bow Public Library

Personnel Policy

All library staff members are considered employees of the City of Broken Bow, and thus fall
under the applicable regulations outlined in the City of Broken Bow, Nebraska Employees
Handbook; or in the case of full-time, non-appointed regular employees, agreements between
the City of Broken Bow and the Local Union No. 1597. Only full-time, 40 hour/week, library
employees qualify for all applicable city benefits, including insurance coverage, paid
vacation, sick and holiday leave, and retirement. Policies not covered specifically herein will
be governed by City personnel policies, as long as City policy does not conflict with state
statutes governing the Library Board.

A. Library Director

L.

The Library Board is responsible for the hiring of the Library Director. In order
to maintain state library accreditation, every effort should be made to hire a
state certified or certifiable person. The Board’s hiring recommendation is then
subject to mayoral appointment, and subsequent approval by the City Council.

An evaluation of the Library Director is the responsibility of the Library
Board, and should be done annually. This evaluation is placed in the
employee’s personnel record in the city offices.

According to the city handbook, an evaluation of the Library Director will
also be carried out by the supervisor of the City of Broken Bow department
heads. This evaluation will be done annually.

The Library Director has the status of a city department head, and as such, is
expected to attend meetings of that group called by the City Administrator or
Mayor and perform other duties as assigned. Should a conflict arise between
those duties and the expected duties, the conflict will be resolved by the
Mayor and the Library Board President.

B. Library Staff

l.

The Library Director advertises for interviews and recommends to the Board
the best candidate(s) for library employment. He/she may ask for the help of
another full-time staff member with this process. The recommended candidate
must then be approved by the Library Board, and in turn, the appropriate
governing body of the City of Broken Bow.

In order to maintain state library accreditation, the Assistant Library Director
and Children’s Librarian must be or work to become state certified. Other
library staff members are encouraged to become certified. Class fees and paid



time at work will be provided for classes leading to certification with the
approval of the Library Director.

. Evaluation of library staff is the responsibility of the Library Director. New

employees are evaluated at the end of six months of employment. Thereafter,
full-time staff is evaluated annually and placed in the employee’s personnel
record in the City offices. Part-time staff is also evaluated annually.

The Assistant Library Director, Children’s Library Assistant, Library
Clerk, and Library Aid are compensated according to negotiated
agreements between the employee unions and the City of Broken Bow.

The Library Director will be compensated according to the percentage
increase assigned by the City Administrator and Mayor, with input from
the Library Board.

C. Job Descriptions

1.

2

Job descriptions outlining accountability, duties and responsibilities, skills and
abilities, and experience and education are available for each library position.

Job descriptions should be reviewed periodically by the appropriate staff
members and the Library Director to reflect current practice.

D. Work Schedules

1

Because the library is open daytime, early evening, and weekend hours, most
staff members are required to work at least some hours outside of the
traditional work day.

Staff is scheduled on a monthly basis and every effort is made to
accommodate staff requests. If after the schedule is made, a staff member
requires or wishes a change in schedule, he/she should first contact other staff
about covering or trading hours and then have that change approved by the
Library Director. Because the number of staff members is small, in some
cases a change may not be possible.

Vacation is worked into the schedule as staffing requirements permit.

Work must be completed during scheduled work time, not on personal time
outside of work hours.

Staff may be in the library during non-public hours provided activities are
work related. Staff should not be in the library for personal business during
non-public hours unless the Director has been notified and given approval.



E. Staffand Board Development
1. Professional Events

Library staff and Board members who are state certified must participate in
approved continuing education events to maintain their certification. Funds
are available in the budget to cover travel, registration, hourly
compensation and other approved expenses. In order to be compensated
for attendance, a written request must be filled out, signed by the Library
Director and/or the Library Board president and approved by the City
Administrator or Mayor.

2. Dues

The library shall cover the cost of dues to the Nebraska Library Association
for state certified staff.

Broken Bow Public Library Personnel Policy
Reviewed and approved by Broken Bow Public Library Board of Trustees
June 2023



Professional Development Policy
Library Board adopted 11/10/2022.

The purpose of this policy is to provide Broken Bow Public Library employees with
professional development opportunities that increase their knowledge, skills, and abilities to
enhance their contributions to the library and to the profession. This is an investment in
library employees and their capacity to meet the current and future needs of the community.

Library employees strive for excellence in the profession by maintaining and enhancing their
personal and collective knowledge and skills, by encouraging the professional development
of co-workers, and by fostering the aspirations of potential members of the profession.

I. External Professional Development Activities

All library employees are encouraged to attend webinars, workshops, seminars, conferences,
or exhibits. The library supports employee participation in these activities and allocates funds
to be used for approved travel and registration expenses. Approval of a request is subject to
the availability of funds, appropriateness of training, and staffing coverage.

II. Internal Professional Development Activities

All library employees are encouraged to attend onsite learning opportunities. The library
supports utilizing staff knowledge and expertise as in-house speakers and presenters. When
needed, the library will bring in outside experts to present information on required topics and
strategic areas of interest.

I1I. Professional Association Memberships

All library employees are encouraged to participate in job-related membership associations.
With approval, the library will pay for annual memberships in such a professional, civic, or
community-wide organization for requesting employees. Approval of a request is subject to
the availability of funds and the appropriateness of the request.



Communications/Marketing Policy
Library Board adopted 11/10/2022.

Broken Bow Public Library will endeavor to communicate information about library
services, materials, and programs to its staff, to Broken Bow residents and business owners,
and the greater library community on a regular basis.

Broken Bow Public Library will provide ongoing information about the library, library
services and programs in a manner that enhances the value of the library to residents and
patrons and increases the community’s return on its investment in the Library.

Board members will participate, as appropriate, in the implementation of a communications
plan developed by the Library staff.

The Broken Bow Public Library Board of Trustees recognizes the value of regular
communications and will support this policy by annually budgeting sufficient funds to
communicate on an on-going basis, or by assisting Library staff in finding funds to ensure
library services, materials and programs are sufficiently and appropriately advertised.



Non-Discrimination Policy

The Broken Bow Public Library is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in access,
education and employment. It is the policy of the Broken Bow Public Library to adhere to all
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to nondiscrimination in
employment and in the provision of services. The Library does not discriminate against
individuals on the basis of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion,
disability, age, genetic information, veteran status, ancestry, or national or ethnic origin.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
PROCEDURES FOR BOOK SIGNINGS

Book signings at the Broken Bow Public Library should be scheduled at least six weeks in
advance of the desired date. No one will be allowed to have a book signing unless the material
has first been published. A copy of the published book should be given to the library director
and or library board for perusal before any commitment is made. The library director or library
board may refuse a book signing if the book is deemed slanderous or libel. (Definition: Libel
and/or slander harm a reputation; decrease respect, regard, or induce disparaging, hostile, or
disagreeable opinion or feelings against an individual or entity.)

It is the author’s responsibility to inform the director of any controversial or prohibitive content.
The Broken Bow Public Library and the City of Broken Bow will not be liable for the content of
any material exhibited on the library premises, nor will the content of the material exhibited in
any way constitute library endorsement of the philosophies, practices, or viewpoints of the
author.

After review, it will be at the discretion of the library director and/or library board to allow an
author to promote his or her book at the Broken Bow Public Library.

When hosting a signing, the Broken Bow Public Library asks that the author:

o  Works with the library to reserve space for the event.

Provides all advertising and promotion for the book signing.

Comes prepared to read from his/her featured book or has a prepared presentation.

Is willing to answer questions from the audience about the book, writing process, etc.
Has books to sell at the time of the signing and is responsible for all sales. The library
cannot sell books for the author before or after the event.

Adopted by Broken Bow Library Board on February 10, 2016
Reviewed by Broken Bow Library Board on October 14, 2022



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
PHYSICAL FACILITIES POLICY

To support excellence in library service, the Board of Trustees accepts the responsibility to
see that facilities are provided and maintained to adequately meet the physical requirements
of a modern, aggressive library service. The facilities will offer the community a compelling
invitation to enter, read, look, listen, learn, discover, and explore.

A. Appropriate Use

1. The Patron Responsibility Policy will apply to all who use the Broken Bow Public
Library facilities, including the multi-purpose and study rooms.

2. No illegal activities may be conducted on library property. No hazardous materials
or weapons may be brought onto library property nor will open flames or candles be
allowed.

3. No skateboards or roller blades, roller skates or other footwear of this type will be
allowed in the Broken Bow Public Library.

4. Smoking or any use of tobacco is not allowed anywhere in the Broken Bow Public
Library building.

B. Multi-purpose Room

The multi-purpose room of the Broken Bow Public Library is designed to meet general,
informational, educational, cultural and civic needs, including activities such as discussion
groups, panels, lectures, conferences, programs, and seminars when not needed for library
purposes. The multi-purpose room is open to all groups regardless of the beliefs and
affiliations of their members.

No user of the multi-purpose room is to imply in any way or represent that their activities,
policies, views, or beliefs are sponsored or endorsed by the Broken Bow Public Library, the
Board of Trustees, or the City of Broken Bow. No publicity in connection with any meeting
or use of the multi-purpose room is to refer to the library except to designate meeting
location.

Groups or individuals authorized to use the multi-purpose room must provide information
and program services to all persons without regard to race, age, color, national origin,
religion, gender, or physical challenges and are responsible for meeting ADA requirements.
No event may be restricted through tuition or admission fees without prior approval from the
Library Director or Board President.



With a signed agreement and paid rental, multi-purpose room users have access to the
following: 6 8-foot rectangular tables, 10 6-foot round tables, 2 small brown tables, 125
chairs, 2 smart Televisions, 2 podiums, 1 DVD player, 1 Sound System with 4 microphones.
2 microwaves, 2 mini refrigerators, 4 coffee pots. All library equipment must remain on
library property. This list is not all-inclusive substitutions may be made.

All uses of the multi-purpose room for activities not related to or sponsored by the Broken
Bow Public Library shall observe the following rules. The library reserves the right to deny
the use of the multi-purpose room to any party not complying with the rules in effect at the
time of the request, or for non-compliance in the past. The library also reserves the right to
interrupt or cancel any meeting that interferes with routine library operations.

1. Groups or individuals must be authorized to use library multi-purpose room by the
library staff via completion of a Meeting Room Application at least forty-eight hours
in advance of the room use. Tentative reservations made by phone will be honored for
twenty-four hours prior to an application form being submitted. All meeting room
applications must be approved by the Library Director or designated staff member.
Approval to use library meeting rooms is not transferable to another person or group.
An individual who will be responsible for the room must be designated on the
application form.

2. Reservations may be made no more than twelve months in advance of the
scheduled event. Reservations are taken on a first-come, first-served basis.
Occasional exemptions from this limit may be made by the Library Director or Board
President.

3. Reservations will be made only for the dates listed on the application. Additional
applications must be made for additional dates and times.

4. The signed Meeting Room Application constitutes an agreement that the event will
be held. Cancellations must be made 48 hours in advance to receive a full refund.
Failure to notify the library that an event has been canceled may be cause for refusing
future requests by that group or individual for the multi-purpose room.

5. Fees: The multi-purpose room is available free of charge for all non-profit groups
or organizations. However, donations are always welcomed and appreciated. For-
profit use of the multi-purpose room carries a flat fee of $35.

6. Users of the multi-purpose room during non-public hours are responsible for
opening, closing, checking bathrooms, and locking the library after use. A key for the
multi-purpose room may be checked out up to 24 hours in advance of the scheduled
event only by the authorized contact person during regular library hours and must be
returned in person or in the book drop within 24 hours of the event’s conclusion. Any
user responsible for losing a library key will be charged the entire cost for re-keying
the entire library.



7. Unless noted in the Meeting Room Application, users must vacate the multi-
purpose room by the originally scheduled time to allow for use by other groups, or by
10 minutes before library closing time. If during open library hours, library staff
should be informed whenever the room is vacated.

8. There will be no solicitation or proselytizing outside of the library meeting rooms.

9. Political campaigning on library property or in the library meeting rooms will not
be allowed. However, the meeting rooms may be used for general political purposes
including information sharing, organizational meetings, or community forums.

10. Youth groups must always have a sponsor age 18 or older.

11. All children under the age of 8 who accompany an adult to an event must always
remain with the adult. The library is not responsible for those children unless
otherwise noted.

12. Any seating or table arrangements shall be the responsibility of the group or
individual using the multi-purpose room. Groups or individuals should allow extra
time for setting up the room before the meeting is to start and for returning the room
to its original condition when the meeting is over. This includes returning chairs and
tables to the storage room or placed back where they were found, putting other library
equipment back where it was found, picking up and emptying trash if needed,
vacuuming the floors, wiping off counters and tables, rinsing out sinks, and cleaning
any utensils or coffee pots.

13. Groups or individuals may arrange to use the library’s audio/visual equipment.
However, no one shall operate the library equipment unless they are properly trained.
This may require that a member of the group using the multi-purpose room make an
appointment with a library staff member prior to the use of the room to receive
training.

14. Nothing may be affixed or mounted in any way to the walls, surfaces, furniture, or
equipment of the multi-purpose room. If signs or decorations need to be displayed,
groups or individuals need to visit with library staff about appropriate ways to display
the items.

15. Neither the library nor its employees shall assume responsibility for any property
of groups or individuals using the multi-purpose room. At the end of each event, all
an individuals’ or group’s property must be removed from the library unless given
prior permission by library staff to leave it temporarily.

16. The individual or group reserving the multi-purpose room shall be responsible for
any damage to or loss of library property, including equipment used by the individual
or group. Definition of damages includes, but is not limited to dropping, breakage,
and accidental damages beyond normal wear. If library property is either damaged or
lost, the Library Director shall obtain estimates for the repair of the damage, cost of



replacement of the lost property, or special cleaning. The individual or group will be
responsible to pay that amount to the library.

17. Food and/or beverages can be served or carried into the multi-purpose room with
permission from library staff. No alcohol may be served on library property without
permission of the Broken Bow City Council and the required legal permits.

18. Library staff is not available to assist in carrying in supplies or materials for
events unless they are library related.

19. None of the fixtures normally found in the multi-purpose meeting rooms, nor the
tables, chairs, podium, or other items associated with these rooms may be taken out of
the library or rented separately.

20. Groups shall not exceed the legal posted capacity of the multi-purpose room as
determined by the Bureau of Fire Prevention. It is the group’s responsibility to
monitor compliance with these regulations and to deny admittance to the room to
people who would cause the group to exceed the posted capacity.

21. Individuals or groups using the multi-purpose room must adhere to the Broken
Bow Public Library’s Patron Responsibility Policy. Inappropriate behavior will
result in consequences outlined in that policy and may result in being denied further
use of the multi-purpose room or any library facility. Copies of the Patron
Responsibility Policy are available from staff at the circulation desk on request.

C. Study Rooms

The Broken Bow Public Library has two study rooms that are available during regular library
hours for use by small groups or individuals who require a quiet atmosphere for study and/or
discussion. Each study room has a table, chairs numbering the room’s maximum capacity,
several power outlets, and access to the library’s free wireless Internet. Study rooms are
available at no cost.

All users of study rooms shall observe the following rules.

1. Reservations can be made up to one month in advance. When the rooms are not
reserved or in use, walk-ins are welcome. Reservations do take priority.

2. Reservations may be made in person, by telephone, or by email to the library’s
website.

3. Persons who use the study rooms are limited to three hours per day. The use of the
study room may be extended if no other individual has reserved the space.

4. Reserved rooms will be held for 15 minutes beyond the reservation time and then
offered to others unless library staff is notified about the delay.



5. Those wanting to use the study rooms must check in with library staff.
6. A person must be age 12 or older to use a study room. Anyone younger than 12
must be accompanied by someone age 15 or older who will always remain in the

study room during use.

7. No more than six people may occupy a study room unless staff permission is
received for an exception.

8. Covered beverages and food are permitted in the study rooms.

9. Study rooms may not be used to distribute/solicit orders or sell goods/services
except for tutors who are compensated for academic tutoring.

10. Study rooms are not intended to be the regular meeting site of a group or
organization.

11. Persons using study rooms must comply with all library policies. Failure to do so
will result in penalties as outlined in the Broken Bow Public Library policies.

12. No items shall be attached to walls or windows of the study rooms.

13. Furniture may not be brought into or removed from a study room without
approval from library staff.

14. Persons who leave the room unattended for more than 15 minutes will forfeit the
study room unless staff is notified beforehand.

15. The library is not responsible for materials left in a study room or anywhere in
the library.

16. Study rooms must be vacated 10 minutes before the closing time of the library.

17. Persons who use study rooms are expected to leave the rooms clean and in neat
condition. Persons who leave the study rooms untidy may lose future study room
privileges.

D. Rights and Exclusions
1. The Broken Bow Public Library retains the right to deny space to any user whose
planned use of the space does not comply with this policy or whose past use has
violated the rules listed herein. Those parties who do not comply with this policy

may be immediately removed from the room and/or library property.

2. The Library Director is responsible for the administration of this policy.



3. The library is not responsible for theft or damage to items brought onto library
property.

4. The library shall bear no responsibility whatsoever for personal injury to any
member, affiliated person, guest, invitee, or licensee of any organization using the
library facilities.

5. The library will not provide storage for any purpose or group other than its own
without advance permission of the Library Director or Library Board.

6. This policy may be updated at any regular or special Library Board meeting.

7. Any group or individual that has been denied permission to use library facilities
may appeal in writing to the Library Board of Trustees.

8. The library reserves the right to cancel room reservations for operational purposes
including, but not limited to, weather closings, power outages, or other unforeseen
events.

9. In the event circumstances arise that are not covered by this document, the
decisions of the Library Director or other library staff are binding.

Approved by the Broken Bow Public Library Board of Trustees
October 11, 2017. Revised by the board on August 12, 2022.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
PRIVACY POLICY

The Broken Bow Public Library takes steps to protect the privacy and confidentiality of all
library patrons, no matter their age. Our commitment to your privacy and confidentiality has
deep roots not only in the law, but also in the ethics and practices of librarianship. In
accordance with the American Library Association’s Code of Ethics: “We protect each
library user’s right to privacy and confidentiality with respect to information sought or
received and resources consulted, borrowed, acquired, or transmitted.” The Broken Bow
Public Library’s privacy and confidentiality policy follows federal and state laws.

State law protects your library records from disclosure if a member of the public or the media
requests them. Library records include your circulation records, your name together with
your address or telephone number, and your email address. Library records may be subject
to disclosure to law enforcement officials under provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act.
Librarians are forbidden from reporting to you that your records have been requested or
obtained under provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act.

The Broken Bow Public Library avoids retaining records not needed for library business
purposes and we do not engage in practices that might place personally identifiable
information on public view. The library will not collect or retain your private and personally
identifiable information without your consent. If you consent to give us your personally
identifiable information, we keep it confidential and will not sell, license, or disclose it to any
third party except as required by law.

Information the library may gather and retain about library patrons includes the following:

e [nformation required to apply for a library card (name, address, telephone
number, email address, birthdate, photo ID)

e Records of material checked out, charges owed, payments made

e Requests for interlibrary loan

e  Sign-up information for library classes and/or programs.

Library records that contain information about customers, the materials they have used,
Internet usage, or the information they have sought, are private and must be treated as
confidential information. Access and disclosure of these records to non-library personnel are
acceptable in these circumstances:

e For internal purposes (such as recovery of lost or stolen library materials
and/or fines; library staff reporting a crime involving the library to law
enforcement) the Library Director may grant access or disclose to any federal,
state or municipal government agency, including representatives of law
enforcement agencies and prosecuting attorneys.



e In all other situations, a valid subpoena or court order is required to disclose
or release library records.

e Library staff may be prohibited by law from disclosing to the customer whose
records were accessed, released, or subpoenaed.

Photos, videos, and recordings that appear on the library’s website may be gathered by
library staff from public programs, events, and library spaces. To ensure the privacy of
individuals and children, images will not be identified using full name or personal identifying
information without written approval from the photographed subject, parent, or legal
guardian.

Under no circumstances may the public take photographs or audio/videotape without the
express permission of the library customers or staff who would be the primary subject within

the composition.

If you have a question or concern about our Privacy Policy, please contact the library.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on September 12, 2011. Revised
by the Board on December 13, 2017. Reviewed May 12, 2022.



REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION OF LIBRARY RESOURCES

The Broken Bow Public Library Board of Trustees has delegated the responsibility for
selection and evaluation of library resources to the director of the library and has established
reconsideration procedures to address concerns about those resources. Completion of this
form is the first step in those procedures. If you wish to request reconsideration of library
resources, please return the completed form to the Library Director, Broken Bow Public
Library, 626 South Street, Broken Bow, NE 68822

Name Date

Address

E-Mail Address Phone

Do you represent self?  yes  no

[f no, name of organization?

Resource on which you are commenting:

Title

Author/Producer

[sita:
Book Textbook Video Display Magazine
Library Program Audio recording Newspaper
Electronic information/network Other (please specity)

What brought this resource to your attention?

Have you examined the entire resource?

What concerns you about the resource? (use other side or additional pages if
necessary)

Are there resource(s) you suggest to provide additional information and/or other
viewpoints on this topic?

Revised by the American Library Association Intellectual Freedom Committee,
June 27, 1995



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
RESTRICTIONS ON PHOTOCOPYING

Photocopying is one of the most popular methods of reproducing books and documents as it
is often quick and relatively inexpensive. The use of copying machines, however, raises
serious preservation issues. Photocopying can cause severe damage to the structure of a
book or document. Because of this potential damage, the Broken Bow Public Library
reserves the right and can restrict photocopying due to the library’s obligation to preserve
historical materials.

The library prohibits photocopying of any of the types of materials listed below:

e Any item considered too fragile by the library staff
e Any item covered by copyright laws

We regret any inconvenience these restrictions may cause.

Adopted by Broken Bow Library Board on February 10, 2016, Revised by Broken Bow
Library Board on June 10, 2022



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
SECURITY CAMERA POLICY

The Broken Bow Public Library strives to offer a welcoming environment and provide a
comfortable and safe experience allowing users to access the library facility and collections
for their intended purposes.

Security cameras are used where needed to provide a safe and secure facility for library
employees, library resources and equipment, and library patrons. The purpose of this policy
is to establish guidelines for the use of security cameras. Cameras will be used within
accepted legal and community practices regarding privacy and in a professional and ethical
manner.

The Broken Bow Public Library values patron privacy first. The goal of the library is to
maintain appropriate confidentiality of its patrons while protecting the public through
cooperation with law enforcement when life is at risk. The policy should be interpreted with
the understanding that the image of a person on library property is not protected, but anything
that would identify content of a library user is protected and held private.

Signs will be posted at library entrances informing the public that security cameras are in use.
Placement:

1. The cameras are for use in public areas only.

2. Cameras will not be used to monitor areas where people have a reasonable
expectation of privacy (i.e. restrooms).

3. Cameras will not be installed for the purpose of monitoring staff performance.

4. The Library Director will oversee the installation of cameras with the assistance of
other applicable city departments or City Administrator.

Operation:

1. Access to recorded footage from cameras will be limited to authorized users as
determined by the Library Director.

2. Camera functions shall not be used or operated in such a manner that violates a
person’s constitutional rights or discriminates against an individual for any reason.

3. Under no circumstances shall the camera equipment be used to hear or record
conversations without a court order.

4. Camera functions shall not be used or operated in such a manner that violates a
person’s constitutional rights or discriminates against an individual for any reason.

5. Cameras may not be used to identify individuals that are only exercising their First
Amendment Rights.

6. All recordings are to be considered property of the Broken Bow Public Library and
are prohibited from being used or accessed for personal use. Employees will not post
quotes, excerpts, or images to the public.



7. When library personnel believe that security cameras have recorded evidence of
theft, vandalism, or other suspected criminal activity, they are to preserve those
images and turn them over to the library director or the City’s legal counsel.

Oversight:

1. The Library will monitor developments in the law, practices, and technology to
ensure that the camera security system is consistent with the best practices and
complies with all federal and state laws.

2. The Library or 3 party vendor engaged by the city, will provide ongoing
maintenance and testing of all monitoring and recording equipment in use.

3. Library personnel will be appropriately trained and supervised in the use of this
technology.

4. The value of each camera’s placement will be reviewed annually to determine if
changes are needed to camera quality and location.

Storage and Retention:

1. Retention of records shall comply with federal and state law governing record
retention.

2. Recordings may be used to assist law enforcement agencies in accordance with
applicable state and federal laws upon receipt of a subpoena.

3. Recordings will be overwritten after 30 days unless notified that footage is needed
for an investigation, complaint or when the recording would likely be evidence in a
legal action. Otherwise, as new images are recorded, the older images will be
automatically deleted.

Adopted by the Broken Bow Public Library Board on April 11, 2018. Revised by the
Board on August, 12, 2022.



BROKEN BOW PUBLIC LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES GOVERNING BY-LAWS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Library Board; bylaws, rules and regulations.
Taken from state statutes 51-205.
The library board shall have the power to make and adopt such bylaws, rules, and regulations

for its own guidance and for the government of the library and reading room as it may deem
expedient, not inconsistent with sections 51-201 to 51-219.

A. Members

1. The board will consist of five members serving a four-year term,
beginning with the March meeting.

2. The Mayor of Broken Bow will seek input from the library board
members when a vacancy on the board occurs. The Mayor’s
recommendation must then be approved by a majority vote of the City
Council. Board members may serve a maximum of two consecutive terms.
Appointments to fill unexpired terms are not considered terms. Reappoint-
ment of a former board member may occur after said member has been off
the board for a period of one year.

3. Newly appointed board members shall be installed after the old
business of the March meeting. The retiring board member’s duties shall
cease after the old business of the March meeting.

4. Any board member missing more than three consecutive
meetings without a pre-approved absence by the board of due to illness
will be terminated.

5. A new board member will be chosen to fill an unexpired term at
the next City Council meeting after the vacancy occurs.

6. Trustees will use the list of responsibilities of the trustee as

outlined by the Nebraska Library Commission in their most current
publication or online document.

B. Meetings



C. Officers

1. Regular meetings of the library board will be held on the second
Friday of each month at 12:00 p.m. at the Broken Bow Public Library
unless other arrangements are agreed to by the board members and library
director.

2. Special meetings of the board may be called by the president or

by any two trustees, for the transaction of such business as is stated in the
call and 24 hours’ notice of any special meeting shall be given to each
trustee and the library director unless such notice is waived. Notice of any
special meeting and purpose of meeting must be placed in three, separate
local public meeting places as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

3. At all meetings of the board, three trustees shall constitute a quorum and a
majority vote of all trustees’ present shall be required for the adoption of any
motion or resolution.

4. Trustees should notify the board president or library director as soon as
possible when they are unable to attend a meeting to ensure a quorum will be
met.

5. The presiding officer shall be entitled to vote on all motions.

6. A listing of monthly agenda items which need to be considered at board
meetings can be found in the appendix.

7. Agenda business to be conducted at meetings will be posted at the library
for public inspection prior to the meeting.

1. The officers of the board shall consist of a President, Vice-\President, and
Secretary, who shall be elected from membership every year at the regular
meeting in June.

2. The term of each officer shall be for one year after the regular meeting in
June and until his/her successor has been duly elected.

3. A vacancy in any office shall be filled at the next regular meeting of the
board after the vacancy occurs.

D. Duties of Officers

1. President
a. Preside at meetings
b. Appoint standing committees
c. Sign all necessary documents
d. Call special meetings of the board



e. Perform other duties which generally pertain to the office.

2. Vice President
a. Perform all the duties of the President if he/she is absent
or disabled.

3. Secretary
a. Keep an accurate record of the proceedings of all board meetings.
b. Record the attendance at such meetings.
c. Have custody of all official books, records, and documents of the
board.
d. Perform any other duties which pertain to the office.

E. Order of Business

Call meeting to order

Roll call

Reading of the minutes

Correspondence and communication
Report of the library director

Bills

Old (unfinished) business

New business

Agenda items requested for next meeting

e A e

F. General Powers
(taken from the state statutes) 51-211.

Library board; general powers and duties; governing body; duty;
discrimination prohibited.

(1) The library board may erect, lease, or occupy an appropriate building for the use of a
library, appoint a suitable librarian and assistants, fix the compensation of such appointees,
and remove such appointees at the pleasure of the board. The governing body of the county,
city, or village in which the library is located shall approve any personnel administrative or
compensation policy or procedure before implementation of such policy or procedure by the
library board.

(2) The library board may establish rules and regulations for the government of such library
as may be deemed necessary for its preservation and to maintain its usefulness and
efficiency. The library board may fix and impose, by general rules, penalties and forfeitures
for trespasses upon or injury to the library grounds, rooms, books, or other property, for
failure to return any book, or for violation of any bylaw, rule, or regulation and fix and
impose reasonable fees, not to exceed the library's actual cost, for nonbasic services. The



board shall have and exercise such power as may be necessary to carry out the spirit and
intent of sections 51-201 to 51-219 in establishing and maintaining a public library and
reading room.

(3) The public library shall make its basic services available without charge to all residents of
the political subdivision which supplies its tax support.

(4) No service shall be denied to any person because of race, sex, religion, age, color,
national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, or marital status.

51-207.
Library board; funds; buildings; custody and control.

The library board shall have exclusive control of expenditures, of all money collected or
donated to the credit of the library fund, of the renting and construction of any library
building, and the supervision, care and custody of the grounds, rooms or buildings
constructed, leased or set apart for that purpose.



AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION BILL OF RIGHTS

The Broken Bow Public Library District subscribes to the American Library Association Bill
of Rights, which says:

The American Library Association affirms that all libraries are forums for information and
ideas, and that the following basic policies should guide their services:

E.

Books and other library resources should be provided for the interest, information, and
enlightenment of all people of the community the library serves. Materials should not be
excluded because of the origin, background, or views of those contributing to their
creation.

Libraries should provide materials and information presenting all points of view on
current and historical issues. Materials should not be proscribed or removed because of
partisan or doctrinal disapproval.

Libraries should challenge censorship in the fulfillment of their responsibility to provide
information and enlightenment.

Libraries should cooperate with all persons and groups concerned with resisting
abridgment of free expression and free access to ideas.

A person's right to use a library should not be denied or abridged because of origin, age,
background, or views.

Libraries which make exhibit space and meeting rooms available to the public they serve
should make such facilities available on an equitable basis, regardless of the beliefs or
affirmations of individuals or groups requesting their use.

Return to Agenda





